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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

FraFl, (EE)

Revenue

Wz

Profit/(Loss) before taxation
Tax expense

BRBLATE A (B 1B)
BB

Profit/(Loss) for the year

FREH/(BR)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to
Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

NGIE: Fa Y S X
w A,/ (E18)

FEBES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERARE

Current assets B EE
Non-current assets FEMEBEE
Current liabilities BB E
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Net assets BETE
Total equity attributable to AR HE = R B
equity Shareholders of the s
Company
Non-controlling interests FEE R
Total equity ks
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2015
—F-EF

RMB’000
ARBTR

389,631

61,820
(18,441)

43,379

2015
“¥-IfF
RMB’000
ARBTR

219,762
1,243,463

323,657
669,805

469,763

468,923
840

469,763

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BHLEEE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—F-mE —B-=F _F-_F _"F——F
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT AREFT ARET T
894,339 744,952 614,399 720,412
(147,636) 26,914 26,956 37,922
(1,389) (11,287) (7,498) (1,882)
(149,025) 15,627 19,458 36,040
(148,897) 15,627 19,458 36,040
(128) = = =
(149,025) 15,627 19,458 36,040
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+-—H

2014 2013 2012 2011
—ET—MmF —E—=F —E——F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T AREF T ARETT
366,576 283,194 382,969 315,898
1,230,725 1,301,821 1,156,501 836,647
558,705 477,795 445,652 287,816
632,409 553,180 551,010 333,344
406,187 554,040 542,808 531,385
405,035 554,040 542,808 531,385

1,152 = = =
406,187 554,040 542,808 531,385




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRME

Dear Shareholders,

The increase in net profit in 2015 was primarily
attributable to the trial implementation of a dual tariff
pricing policy for natural gas power generation (the
“Dual Tariff Policy”) by the regulatory authorities of
Zhejiang Government starting from 1 January 2015 with
a view to promoting the healthy development of natural
gas-fired power plants, after taking into account the
current situation of the natural gas power generation
industry within Zhejiang province. Given the
introduction of the Dual Tariff Policy, the operating
revenue of the power plants under the Group in 2015
then comprised two components, namely capacity tariff
revenue and volume tariff revenue. It then changed the
revenue model of the power plants under the Group,
which had been based on volume tariff revenue only.
As such, the power generation volume, on-grid tariff
and natural gas price of the power plants under the
Company were adjusted accordingly.

The socio-economic development in China is now
entering into a “New Normal” stage, which enables it to
maintain  medium to high speed growth in the
turbulence of global economic downturn. The PRC
government has continued to push forward the
progress of different reforms and accelerate the shift
from old to new growth drivers. While releasing the
benefits from the reforms and moderately expanding
the overall demand, it will also step up its efforts in
structural reform, especially on the supply side. Among
which, priority will be given to the supply-side structural
reform of the energy sector. As pointed out by Premier
Li Kegiang in the standing committee meeting of the
State Council, the energy sector should enhance its
competitiveness to facilitate the adjustment and
upgrade of industrial structure as well as steady
economic growth, which will in turn promote energy
saving, emission reduction and sustainable
development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE

In 2016, the central government will continue to roll out
series of policies and measures targeting “steady
growth”, as such, the benefit of the reforms will be
gradually released and the economy will maintain stable
development under the “New Normal” state, which will
be beneficial for the growth of electricity consumption.
Looking forward, there will be increasing pressure on
energy saving, reduction of emission and environment
protection in China. The implementation of replacement
of other energy with electricity, with an aim to achieve
airborne pollution control, energy saving and reduction
of emission, will be favourable for the optimization of
energy supply structure, and will thus help promoting
the steady development of the natural gas power
generation industry. As a major clean energy supplier
focusing on the provision of natural gas, the Group will
certainly be benefitted from the above trend.

The preparation of energy planning under the “13th
Five-Year Plan” is now entering the final stage. This
plan will be focusing on the new features of energy
development emerged in the last two years, which are
mainly reflected in three aspects, namely the
deceleration and shift of consumption growth,
acceleration of structural optimization and
commencement of change of growth drivers. The
“reform of oil and natural gas system”, “enhancement
of overall operational efficiencies of the energy sector”
and “electric power system reform” will be the major
breakthroughs targeted in energy planning under the
“13th Five-Year Plan”, and the Group will certainly be
offered sound development opportunities from this
wave of reforms.

Meanwhile, the Company is also planning for the
development of other clean energy projects as
additional projects reserved for the current and long-
term development, with an intention to expand its
market share in the clean energy supply market in
China. The Company is currently considering the
implementation of preliminary assessment on possible
financing arrangements and acquisition plans. Yet, as of
the date of this report, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has entered into any legally binding
agreement or contract for the purpose of any of the
above possible acquisition or financing plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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For the past year, all power plants of the Group
maintained production safety under its respective
sound operation and the construction of the new
projects has been moving forward steadily. In response
to the challenging environment with slowdown of overall
economic development and bottleneck of development
of the natural gas power generation industry in China,
the Group has adopted various effective measures that
successfully decreased the production cost and
optimized the method of power generation, thus
increasing the profitability of the Group to a certain
extent. | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to
all directors, the management team and all staff for
their dedication, as well as all shareholders and
partners for their tremendous support to obtain all the
above key achievements.

In the future, the Group will be proactive and innovative
with full confidence to achieve outstanding results.

Chai Wei
Chairman of the Board and President

Zhejiang Province, China, 18 March 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—HfFEHRE O7

BE—FP TEERRFLZLE B
e FREERBIHE - AREETEE
BEEERNE RAARBETEERES
BRI TZET - T TREARER - &
BTEERA BLEELHN —EREEL
RATEBERMEN - MZTBREETENEE
WMERNBZULUES EEEBMEEETH
EFHBNMBUBRRERRETEERBHFOAN
X EMARAREMRIRRO B R

ERARR - ANEEE DM - 2% FE

4 -

Kz
EERFAAH

FEMITE  —E-R"F=A+/\H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Installed Capacity

The Group is mainly engaged in the construction,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants, and has four wholly-owned gas-fired power
plants in Zhejiang province, namely Zhejiang Amber
De-Neng Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (47T
RIAEEERAREEFRAR]) (“De-Neng Power Plant”),
Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (MMIRIAERXRRARZLEBR A

7)) (“Blue Sky Power Plant”), Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (BRI (LH) RE AT HR A
Al) (“Anji Power Plant”) and Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (#7/T 3% 39 &
XARRBEEARAA) (Jing-Xing Power Plant”). As at

31 December 2015, the aggregate installed capacity
and the attributable installed capacity of the above
power plants was approximately 457MW.
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Production Volume

The production volume for the year ended 31
December 2015 was 303,020Mwh (2014:
1,101,421Mwh), representing a decrease of 72.49% as
compared with last year. The production volume has
decreased due to the trial implementation of the Dual
Tariff Policy for natural gas-fired power plants since 1
January 2015, resulting in the change in the Group’s
revenue model with the operating revenue now
comprises of two components, namely revenue based
on volume of power generation (volume tariff) and
revenue based on capacity (capacity tariff).

The adjustments of annual production plan led to a
year-on-year decrease in the Group’s annual
production volume. In order to facilitate the trial
implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2015
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the maximum demand within the power grid.
The planned generation hours in 2015 for Blue Sky
Power Plant and De-Neng Power Plant under the
Group were 1,800 hours, while the planned generation
hours for the new Anji Power Plant in 2015 were 560
hours and the planned generation hours for Jing-Xing
Power Plant were 3,500 hours. Under the guidance of
the new policy, the Group’s production volume in 2015
substantially decreased as compared to that in 2014.
(For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 June 2015).
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Natural Gas Supply

The total natural gas supply for the year ended 31
December 2015 was 69.96 milion m® (2014: 257.38
million m?®), representing a decrease of 72.82% as
compared with last year. As the production volume
decreased, natural gas supply decreased accordingly.

Fuel Cost

Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group’s
power plants. The natural gas price is determined by
the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province.

Effective from 1 April 2015, natural gas price (inclusive
of VAT) offered by Zhejiang Province Natural Gas
Development Company (the sole natural gas supplier of
the Group) to the Company’s gas-fired power plants
was adjusted from RMB3.36/m® to RMB3.08/mq.
Effective from 20 November 2015, natural gas price
(inclusive of VAT) offered to the Company’s gas-fired
power plants was adjusted from RMB3.08/m® to
RMB2.41/mé8.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fuel cost
accounted for 48.68% of the revenue, representing a
decrease of 33.48 percentage points as compared to
last year.

On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province after taking into account the types of
fuel, cost structure and operating profit of similar power
plants within the provincial grid.

According to the Notice Regarding the Trial
Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province (B8R & X%
RETHAFNTMEHIEE AR ) issued by the Price
Bureau of Zhejiang Province, the trial dual tariff has
been implemented starting from 1 January 2015. The
volume tariff of Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power
Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant under the Group from
January to March 2015 was RMBO0.79/Kwh (inclusive of
VAT), while starting from 1 April 2015, the volume tariff
and capacity tariff have been changed to RMBO0.73/
Kwh (inclusive of VAT) and RMB470/Kw per annum
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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(inclusive of VAT), respectively. The volume tariff of Aniji
Power Plant under the Group from January to March
2015 was RMBO0.73/Kwh (inclusive of VAT), while
starting from 1 April 2015, the volume tariff and
capacity tariff have been changed to RMBO0.67/Kwh
(inclusive of VAT) and RMB680/Kw per annum (inclusive
of VAT), respectively.

According to the Notice Regarding the Adjustment on
the On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generating
Units (KR FABRARBEEHAE FEEENEE))
issued by the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province,
starting from 20 November 2015, the volume tariff of
Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant under the Group has been adjusted
to RMBO0.60/Kwh (inclusive of VAT); the volume tariff of
Anji Power Plant under the Group has been adjusted to
RMBO0.54/Kwh (inclusive of VAT), among which the
capacity tariff remains unchanged at its original level.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Highlight

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of
the Group was approximately RMB389,631,000 (2014:

RMB894,339,000), representing a decrease of 56.43%
as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB43,691,000 (2014: loss of
RMB148,897,000), representing an increase of 129.34%
as compared to 2014. Basic earnings per share
amounted to RMBO0.103 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: loss of RMBO0.36).

The increase in profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was primarily attributable
to the trial implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy for
natural gas power generating units in Zhejiang province
since 1 January 2015, as well as the corresponding
adjustments on both on-grid tariff and natural gas
price.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately
RMB389,631,000, representing a decrease of 56.43%
as compared with RMB894,339,000 last year. A
decrease in revenue was primarily due to the
implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy for natural gas-
fired power plants in Zhejiang province and the
corresponding decrease in production volume.

Operating Costs

Operating costs of the Group for 2015 was
RMB279,467,000, representing a decrease of 71.74%
as compared with RMB988,951,000 in 2014. A
decrease in operating costs was primarily due to the
implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy for natural gas-
fired power plants in Zhejiang province and the
corresponding decrease in both production volume and
natural gas price.

Income Tax

Since preferential enterprise income tax enjoyed by the
power plants of the Group expired on 31 December
2012, those power plants had to provide for and pay
the PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% during
2013. The PRC enterprise income tax provided for the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB18,441,000.

Pursuant to the provisions of tax law of the PRC, 10%
withholding tax is levied on foreign investors in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign
invested enterprises earned after 1 January 2008,
while the applicable tax rate for foreign investors
registered in Hong Kong is 5% provided they meet
certain criteria. Therefore, deferred tax liabilities of the
Group of RMB5,708,000 have been recognised at a
rate of 5% as at 31 December 2015.

No provision of income tax was made for the members
of the Group outside of the PRC as the Group had no
taxable profits generated outside the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2015, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB43,691,000 (2014: loss of RMB148,897,000),
representing an increase of RMB192,588,000, or
approximately 129.34%, as compared with last year.

The increase in net profit in 2015 was primarily
attributable to the implementation of the Dual Tariff
Policy for natural gas-fired power plants in Zhejiang
province. Under the new policy, the operating revenue
of the power plants under the Group in 2015
comprised two components, namely capacity tariff
revenue and volume tariff revenue. The production
volume, on-grid tariff and natural gas price of the
power plants under the Company were adjusted
accordingly.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash wused in operating activities was
RMB12,307,000 (net cash generated from 2014:
RMB39,756,000). The decrease in the net cash
generated from operating activities as compared with
last year was mainly due to the repayment of most of
the bills payable. The aging of the Group’s receivables
is one month and in general, the revenue generated in
the previous month is received in the current month
and used for the settlement of fuel purchases of the
current month. Credit record of our customers was
satisfactory and there has been no risk of default. Net
cash used in investing activites was RMB7,013,000
(2014: RMB131,036,000), representing a decrease of
94.65% as compared with last year. The amount was
primarily used towards the remaining project payment
for the construction of and equipment procurement for
the Anji Project. During the period under review, there
was no other significant investing activity. Net cash
generated from financing activities was RMB20,833,000
(2014: RMB179,544,000), which was primarily due to
the fund raised by way of share issue of
RMB33,373,000; borrowings of RMB184,555,000; the
repayment of short-term and long-term loans of
RMB237,095,000; and the decrease in pledged
deposits of RMB40,000,000.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a cash
pbalance of RMB150,012,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB148,499,000), all of which were used for working
capital purpose. Cash was generally placed with banks
as short-term deposits.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB103,895,000 (31
December 2014: RMB192,129,000). The decrease in net
current liabilities was mainly attributable to the
significant decrease in trade payables of the Company
under the Dual Tariff Policy in Zhejiang province in
2015. Meanwhile, the Company has repaid part of the
liquidity loans and replaced part of short-term loans
with long-term loans.

The Group regularly monitors its liquidity positions and
projected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it meets its short-term
and long-term liquidity requirements. The Group
maintains long-term satisfactory relationships with the
major banks, and the Directors are confident that the
Group will be able to satisfy all conditions required by
its bank creditors and will have sufficient cash to meet
its working capital requirements for future operations.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including all loans and borrowings as well as
long-term payables and the Convertible Bonds, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio was
60.83% (31 December 2014: 65.68%), representing a
decrease of 4.85 percentage points as compared with
2014.
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Foreign Exchange

The Group has placed short-term deposits with
licensed banks in Hong Kong Dollars, which will affect
the Group’s financial conditions as the exchange rate of
Hong Kong Dollars to Renminbi fluctuates. As the
Group’s operating expenses are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and our revenue is also settled in Renminbi,
the Group has not hedged the risks of exchange rate
fluctuations through any forward contracts or
borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
RMB26,002,000 (31 December 2014: RMB11,887,000)
of capital commitments relating to the purchase and
construction of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided for in the annual financial
report. The Group had authorized but not contracted
for capital commitments of RMB7,100,000 (31
December 2014: RMB32,230,000). During the year, the
Group had no major contingent liabilities or off balance
sheet commitments.

PROSPECTS

The socio-economic development in China is now
entering into a “New Normal” stage, which enables it to
maintain medium to high speed growth in the
turbulence of global economic downturn. The PRC
government has continued to push forward the
progress of different reforms and accelerate the shift
from old to new growth drivers. While releasing the
benefits from the reforms and moderately expanding
the overall demand, it will also step up its efforts in
structural reform, especially on the supply side. Among
which, priority will be given to the supply-side structural
reform of the energy sector. As pointed out by Premier
Li Kegiang in the standing committee meeting of the
State Council, the energy sector should enhance its
competitiveness to facilitate the adjustment and
upgrade of industrial structure as well as steady
economic growth, which will in turn promote energy
saving, emission reduction and sustainable
development.
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The preparation of energy planning under the “13th [T=RIERASRRIIEFEEATRREE
Five-Year Plan” is now entering the final stage. This RNRBE B EGIMERRERLIRITTE
plan will be focusing on the new features of energy FEXRREHBERRERE SBELD
development emerged in the last two years, which are Mk - FRFHIEH=FEIE - BEE54X5E
mainly reflected in three aspects, namely deceleration EERE - UTEHLAESHT:

and shift of consumption growth, acceleration of

structural optimization and the change of growth

drivers. In view of the development of the Group, the

followings are a few highlights of the plan:

| Steadily push forward the reform of oil and natural
gas system. Currently, the central government is
considering the introduction of Certain Opinions
on Deepening Reform of Oil and Natural Gas
System (CEERFE{ICABRRAREFNENE TE
B.)). As a clean energy supplier with natural gas
as its major raw material, the Company will
certainly benefit from the natural gas system
reform;

Il. Enhance the overall operational efficiencies of the
energy sector and optimize the layout of high
energy consumption industries and energy
development while lowering the dependence on
long-distance energy transmission. As a province
known for enormous energy consumption,
Zhejiang Province is highly dependent on external
sources of energy. The Group will actively explore
the feasibility of developing centralized energy
supply in a distributed form of its power plants
through natural gas power generation, as natural
gas, given it is a clean energy, will be an
excellent carrier for energy in a distributed form;
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Ill.  Accelerate the implementation of electric power
system reform. The government will, with its best
endeavours, motivate all regions across the nation
to accelerate the establishment of an electric
power market for direct transactions. It will also
release its control over on-grid tariff and the
selling price of electricity, while maintaining
stringent control over the price of power
transmission and distribution by grid enterprises.
Some of the regions are gradually promoting the
trial implementation of direct transactions between
electricity users, so as to lower the electricity
price of the users and reduce the production cost
of the companies, which will in turn encourage
power consumption.

In 2016, the central government will continue to roll out
series of policies and measures targeting “steady
growth”, as such, the benefit of the reforms will be
gradually released and the economy will maintain stable
development under the “New Normal” state, which will
be beneficial for the growth of electricity consumption.
Looking forward, there will be increasing pressure on
energy saving, reduction of emission and environment
protection in China. The implementation of replacement
of other energy with electricity, with an aim to achieve
airborne pollution control, energy saving and reduction
of emission, will be favourable for the optimization of
energy supply structure, and will thus help promoting
the steady development of the natural gas power
generation industry. As a major clean energy supplier
focusing on the provision of natural gas, the Group will
certainly be benefitted from the above trend.

In 2015, the apparent consumption of natural gas in
the PRC was approximately 191.0 bilion mé. The
domestic supply of natural gas in 2016 will amount to
139.0 billion m® (including coal bed methane),
representing a year-on-year increase of 5.5% and a
higher production volume growth as compared to that
of approximately 3.5% in 2015. In 2016, the apparent
consumption of natural gas in the PRC is expected to
increase by 7.3% to 205.0 billion mé. The proportion of
natural gas in China’s one-off energy consumption
structure is also expected to increase from 5.9% in
2015 to 6.45%. Among which the gas consumption of
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the city gas industry, power generation industry,
industrial fuel industry and chemical industry will
increase by 9.1%, 87%, 6.1% and 3.7% while the
volume of consumption will increase to 82.7 billion m?,
31.9 bilion m3, 61.1 bilion m® and 29.3 billion m3,
respectively.

In response to the above situation, the management
will continue to support and dedicate to the
development of clean energy and is confident in the
future development of the existing power plants and
new or acquisition projects of the Group.

Meanwhile, the shareholders and potential investors of
the Company should note that as mentioned in the
announcement issued by the Company on 23 June
2015, the Group has received the Notice Regarding the
Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas
Power Generating Units in Zhejiang Province (@R %
ERARBEMAATMIHEEHNBA)) from the
Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province. Effective from 1
January 2015, the trial dual tariff has been
implemented for the power plants under the Group.
The dual tariff consists of volume tariff and capacity
tariff. The power generation policy has changed the
single profit model of the power plants under the
Company in the past and the revenue of the Company
will then comprises of two components, namely
capacity revenue (capacity tariff) and volume revenue
(volume tariff). The Company will continue to implement
the power generation policy in 2016. If there is any
change in the power generation policy, the Company
will make announcement in due course.

Moreover, according to the 2016 Unified Production
Plan for Natural Gas Power Generating Units (20164 X
KRG FAMAMAEEE:T2E]) issued by Zhejiang Province
Economic and Information Commission, the planned
generation hours for Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng
Power Plant and Anji Power Plant under the Group in
2016 will be 300 hours while the planned generation
hour for Jing-Xing Power Plant (being a power plant for
geographical survey) in 2016 will be approximately 400
hours.
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In addition, the Group is well prepared for the
research, development and investment in the projects
in relation to gas-fired power generation, as well as
investigation and research on clean energy projects
other than natural gas. The Group will further increase
its reserves in projects for current and long term
development, and will expand its market share in the
clean energy supply in the PRC.

The Group will continue to strengthen its human
resources and focus on the training of talents to build
a team with outstanding members. In addition, the
Group will continue to implement its comprehensive
budget management, upgrade its ability in plan
execution and budget control in order to further
enhance its management standard and secure stable
and sustainable development of the Group. The Group,
having full confidence in the industry, will constantly
show perseverance in its development of clean energy
business. It is believed that the Group will achieve
satisfactory results and become one of the top clean
energy suppliers in the PRC.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKDO0.03 per share to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 10 June 2016. Subject to the
approval of the upcoming annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be paid on or about
Tuesday, 21 June 2016.

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

The Group’s power plants have adopted various
internal policies and implemented protective measures
to prevent health and safety hazards. The policies
adopted by the Company are in line with government
regulations. There were no material accidents or
suspensions during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Each of the Group’s power plants has installed a
monitoring system to monitor the emission volume of
sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides on a real-time
basis. The emission is inspected regularly by the Group
to determine whether the relevant standard has been
satisfied before discharging.

During the power generation process, conventional
coal-fired power plant discharges waste water and
emits air pollutants, such as sulphur dioxide, nitrogen
oxides and fine particles. The Group’s power plants are
fuelled with natural gas which is a cleaner fossil fuel.
Unlike conventional coal-fired power plants, the Group’s
power plants emit significantly lesser amount of
nitrogen oxides and barely emit any sulphur dioxide
and fine particles. For the same amount of heat
generated, combusting natural gas releases 50% less
carbon dioxide as compared to combusting coal.

The Group believes that the environmental protection
system and facilities of our power plants are in full
compliance with the relevant national and local
regulations on environment protection.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

1.

Mr. CHAI Wei

Mr. Chai, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 September 2008. Mr. Chai is also the
Chairman of the Board and the President of the
Company. He is responsible for the overall business
strategy and corporate development of the Group,
sourcing and development of new projects and
maintaining relationship between the Group and the
local government authorities in which the Group’s
power plants are located. Mr. Chai has over 20
years of experience in corporate development and
management in a variety of sectors, including
energy and public media. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chai worked in the public media industry. He
was the founder of Zhejiang King Island Limited (47
I BREEERAR) and Zhejiang Expressway
Advertising Co. (1)L /=& & % A 7)). Mr. Chai was
a director and general manager of Zhejiang King
Island Limited (#/I % S EE AR 2 F]) during the
period from 1992 to 2003, and was the vice-
chairman and general manager of Zhejiang
Expressway Advertising Co. (#/I iR E S A7)
during the period from 1998 to 2003.

Since 2005, Mr. Chai has been responsible for
the overall management of all our power plants,
namely Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power
Plant and Jing — Xing Power Plant (collectively
“Our Power Plants”). Mr. Chai has also been a
director of all the subsidiaries of the Group, a
director of Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited(& £
BEE D AR (“Puxing Energy”) since 2002, a
director of Xinjiang Wanxiang GPE Technology
Co., Ltd. (FTEEMBREZMABRAF) since
February 2013, the chairman of Hangzhou Song-
Da Investment Management Co., Ltd. (4 /N#2 &=
WEEEABMRAT]) since November 2013, and
was the general manager of Puxing Energy during
the period from 2002 to December 2008. He has
been a non-executive director of Shanghai Rongyi
E-commerce Co., Ltd (F /BB S PEFREBERHD
AR A7]), a company listed on the “New Third
Board” of the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Co., Ltd. since July 2015. He is
currently a director of the Zhejiang Economic

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z—-HFEHRE 21

HITES

1. RERAE
SesE 4 - 4557 - EA_‘?E%)\ERH/\EI
BZERRTES  REETRAR
EERNAN AEAKEERR %%’?Bﬁ
BN EEER WERRERFEBUAR

A N 52 (B B K 52 (B S R P EE A 05 B
-Z-BF'?E’JE%%‘)%?EEE EREAFEE
ZETEREB0FNEEERRE
Z&“%ﬁ bﬂk$%@ﬁﬁ'%?ﬁ$%$@
HEHEIE RAITISEEEARA
/\ﬁ/Ierd:’_\TE']EU_L/\ i jl
N_FE_TT=F RLEER/RFIE
EESHARARESTRARKE MR —
NNANFE_ZTZ=_FR/INTISRE
SRARIBESTRFAKLE -

RELE-_ZTRAFERRRMEIE
B (ENERER - REEMMRIER -
SN ERDBEBERE - AL
THEAEBZRAERBA ﬂ%? =
“EECFREFEEEREROAR(E
ERRDEE BT =F_AKEH
THEBERZERMARIANESE - B
“EZHF+-AREREEMMNRERE
EEERAAEER YR _TT_F
ETT)\FH_AHELERRER
B -B-T-AFtARHEZES N
CERENERRGAERIAFH =R L
MARELBRSWEFTRABROERA
AZIFAITEST B RENMTREE




BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESNEREEAEBERE

Council and the vice president of the Association
of the Energy Industry of Zhejiang province (47T
BEREBREB A E) M. Chai graduated from
Zhejiang Art and Craft School (#/T4& T & X722
), majoring in industrial design.

Mr. LAI Chun Yu

Mr. Lai, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 22 April 2013. Mr. Lai is also the
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai has
been a member of CPA Australia since 2002 and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Lai holds a
bachelor’s degree in business of Queensland
University of Technology and has over 14 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Lai has been an independent
non-executive director of Anxian Yuan China
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since October 2014. He joined the
Group in May 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Lai was the
qualified accountant and company secretary of a
PRC-based computer-aided software solution
provider. In addition, he was also the financial
controller of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, and had worked for one of the big four
accounting firms.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

3.

Mr. WEI Jun Yong

Mr. Wei, aged 46, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 25 September 2015. Mr.
Wei has over 20 years of experience in corporate
operation management. Mr. Wei has been a
director and the president of Minsheng Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. (REASRERHERAF)
(“Minsheng Life”) since 2009 and an executive
committee member since 2011. Mr. Wei has been
the financial officer of Minsheng Life since 2012
and has been the chief financial officer since
2013. Prior to that, Mr. Wei worked in the
headquarter of Ping An and its subsidiaries, and
served as various key management positions.
Since August 2015, Mr. Wei has served as the
president of Shanghai Pu-xing Energy Limited (&
E B R/ 2A7A]). Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin
Engineering University ("% EE T2 X&) with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
electronic engineering in 1991. He also graduated
from China Europe International Business School
(PR T B FT) with a master’s degree in
management, majoring in business administration
in 2008.

Mr. LIU Xuan Hua

Mr. Liu, aged 35, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 25 September 2015. Mr. Liu,
who is a Chinese certified public accountant and
a certified tax adviser, has many years of working
experience in the field of financial management.
Mr. Liu joined Wanxiang Group in 2002 and was
responsible for finance-related functions. Since
2013, Mr. Liu has been the deputy manager and
the manager of the Department of Financial Asset
(Bt ¥ E E &) and then the assistant to the
general manger of Pu-xing (Xinjiang) Energy Co.,
Ltd. (E2 (&) gEREMRAR]) (formerly known
as Xinjiang Wanxiang Clean Energy Co., Ltd. (37
EEMNFRILRAMRAT). Mr. Liu graduated from
Hunan University (4 KX2) with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting in 2002 and obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
(EBMEKRE) in 2012,
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

5.

Mr. TSE Chi Man

Mr. Tse, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director (INED”) on 25
May 2009. Mr. Tse has over 20 vyears of
experience in finance and business development
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse
held various positions in a number of
organizations, including Chase Manhattan Asia
Limited as a director, Inchcape Pacific Limited as
a mergers and acquisitions director, Lerado Group
(Holding) Company Limited as an executive
director, and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (China)
Limited as a managing director. Mr. Tse had also
worked for Imagi International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange from
1999 to 2008 where he served as a director
since 2004 and then the chief financial officer
since 2007, overseeing the company’s accounting
and finance, administration and human resources
functions. Mr. Tse was also a member of the
Design Institute Advisory Board of Vocational
Training Council. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s
degree and a master’'s degree in business
administration, both from the University of Texas,
Arlington.
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Mr. YAO Xian Guo

Mr. Yao, aged 63, was appointed as an INED on
25 May 2009. Mr. Yao is a professor of the
School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang University. He is
also a member of The Expert Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China (XM EMEBEESENTEALAER),
executive vice-chairman of the China Industrial
Economic Association (FF B T 2 & E &2 @),
member of the Zhejiang Government Advisory
Council (#IEBITEHZEE) and the chairman
of the Zhejiang Society of Public Administration
(MIEALEREES) Mr. Yao holds a master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University. Mr.
Yao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd,,
Zhejiang Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network
Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co.,
Ltd., which are companies listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and Zhejiang Asia-Pacific
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao has also
served as an independent non-executive director
of Zhejiang Guangsha Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Xinhu
Venture Investment Co., Ltd., Xinhu Zhongbao
Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Southeast Electric Power
Company Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
Zhejiang Hailiang Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. YU Wayne W.

Mr. Yu, aged 52, was appointed as an INED on
29 August 2012. Mr. Yu is currently a professor of
City University of Hong Kong. Before joining City
University of Hong Kong, he was a professor of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and was
an assistant professor of the School of Business
at Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu holds a
bachelor of business administration degree, a
master of Arts in Economics, and a Ph.D. in
Finance. In addition, he is a Chartered Financial
Analyst. Mr. Yu served as an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Gas Corporation
Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange).
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Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors (i)
has not held any directorships in any public
companies (the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas)
in the last three years; (i) does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; and (i) does not
hold any positions in the Company or other
members of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Genyong, aged 53, is the Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Gu joined the Group in December 2012
and was responsible for work safety in electric power
generation and the construction management of the
Group. Mr. Gu has engaged in the power industry for
more than 25 years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gu
was the factory manager of Dilong Thermal Power
Plant (38224 E %) of Nine Dragons Group, and an
installation expert and an engineer of SINOPEC Jinling
Petrochemical Company and a member of Jiangsu
Society of Engineering Thermophysics (JT &k & T2 2%
Ei#p&&8). Mr. Gu graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Technology in 1987, majoring in power plant thermal
energy, and from Southeast University upon completion
of a master’'s course in 1999, majoring in system
engineering (corporate management).

COMPANY SECRETARY

The biography of Mr. LAl Chun Yu (32#& =) is set out
on page 22 of this report.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited accounts of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
development, operation and management of power
plants fuelled by natural gas in the PRC.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The Group
has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and
addressing the concerns of stakeholders. These factors
are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could become material in the future.

Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group
are outlined below:

1. The Chinese economy has entered into the “New
Normal” phase with further deepening of industrial
structure reform. Among which, the adjustments
on industrial policies during the course of the
advancement of electric power system reform
may have impact on the Group’s business
operation. Such impact involves risk of
uncertainty.

2. The growth of the Chinese macro-economy has
slowed down, which has directly affected the
power consumption demand throughout the
country. The changes in demand may have
impact on the Group’s existing power generation
business. Such impact involves risk of
uncertainty.
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3. In 2015, the Zhejiang Government implemented a
trial dual tariff pricing policy for the natural gas
power generation industry. This policy changed
the business model of the Group, which was
previously based only on sales volume of
electricity. The adjustment and change of policy
have affected the Group’s business operation,
and the Group’s financial performance has been
adjusted accordingly.

4.  Zhejiang Province Natural Gas Development Co.,
Ltd. (fIIEXRARFEZEBRAF) is the sole
natural gas supplier of the Group. The stability of
natural gas supply will affect the Group’s business
operation.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 57 of
this report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.03 per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on
Friday, 10 June 2016. The proposed final dividend will
be paid on or around 21 June 2016 following approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB114,863,000
(2014: RMB85,057,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no donation
was made by the Group (2014: RMB200,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated. The Company does not currently have
any share option arrangement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the percentage
of revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers was 84.30% and 100%
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
only one supplier of natural gas and it attributed to
100% of the Group’s natural gas purchases.
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To the knowledge of the Company, none of the
Directors or their associates, or any shareholder
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company held any interests in any of the above
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfill its long-term goals and development. To maintain
its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering
constantly high standards of quality in the service to its
customers. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Details of the Group’s charges on assets as at 31
December 2015 are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has engaged in or were
interested in any business which competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date
of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company or an associated company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group in the normal course of business
during the reporting period are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements. These transactions constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) but were exempt
from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December
2015 and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (Chairman and President)
Mr. LAl Chun Yu

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jun Yong (appointed on 25 September 2015)
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua (appointed on 25 September 2015)
Mr. PEI Shao Hua (resigned on 17 June 2015)

Mr. LI Jin Quan (resigned on 17 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

Mr. Pei Shao Hua and Mr. Li Jin Quan resigned as the
non-executive Directors with effect from 17 June 2015,
as both of them would like to devote more time to their
other business endeavours.
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Directors (including non-
executive Directors) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Yao Xian
Guo, Mr. Yu Wayne W. and Mr. Lai Chun Yu will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and they have decided to offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Further, according to Article 83(3) of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Thus, Mr. Wei Jun
Yong and Mr. Liu Xuan Hua who were appointed as the
non-executive Directors of the Company on 25
September 2015 shall hold office only until the AGM
and be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years.
None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Since 2015, Mr. Chai Wei has been a non-executive
director of Shanghai Rongyi E-commerce Co., Ltd (&
BASWPEFEBRMNDBRAT), a company listed on
the “New Third Board” of the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations System Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has
been disclosed by Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director was a party and in which a
Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2015 or any
time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all
the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERRZEERKXR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2015, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

RARREMEEKERSTRAERM - R
—E-AFtA=1+—8 " TIHAL(FRA
E=ARHTRABRINRARB] D KA
AR EEREE SN EERIIEXVEE
2REIDHARNARRBEENRERIRE -
HBRRARRBIRIEF 75 N B 1RG5 553361F
FENSRMMERIAR

Number of shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued share

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest held (rote? capital
R, HEETT
% 3R & 18 e HH ARty BB EY RABESEL
Amber International Investment Co., Beneficial interest 396,000,000 Mete 2) (L) 86.35%
Ltd. (“Amber International”) EnEAA 396,000,000 %2) ()
FRIHERIEEBR AR
(Bl 3)
Puxing Energy (M) Interest in a controlled 396,000,000 (L) 86.35%
T2 By corporation
REEE R
Mr. Lu Wei Ding (“Mr. Lu?) (ote® Interest in controlled 396,000,000 (L) 86.35%
BEREKEE(RELE] WED corporations
RiEEE R
Ms. Li LiMote4 Interest of spouse 396,000,000 (L) 86.35%
R LE [RE
BC Greater China Opportunities Fund Beneficial Interest 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%
SPC, acting on behalf of and for B iFHEA A
account of BC New Energy Fund
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof)
RERPERBEES (KX K RBC
New Energy Fund SP (3% A Fh 3
BERES v BYEEMEEB)TE)
BC Asset Management Limited 9% |nterest in a controlled 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%

BC Asset Management Limited
GED)
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The letter “I” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the shares.

Of the 396,000,000 shares, 300,000,000 are issued shares of the
Company, representing approximately 65.42% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company. The balance 96,000,000
shares is the number of shares to be issued if Amber
International, being the sole bondholder of the convertible bond
(“Convertible Bond”) in the principal amount of HK$124,800,000
issued by the Company, exercises in full the conversion rights
attached to the Convertible Bond, which is considered interests of
Amber International under the SFO. For the information of the
shareholders of the Company, it is a term of the Convertible Bond
that the maximum number of shares that may be converted is
limited to the extent that following such conversion, the shares
held by the public shareholders should not be less than 25% of
the then issued share capital of the Company.

These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as
to 90% by Puxing Energy, which is owned as to 57.14% by China
Wanxiang which in turn is, inter alia, 82.50% owned by Mr. Lu and
16.67% by BE AR EIEBRRAA (Tong Lian Capital Management
Co., Ltd.), a company owned as to 5% by Mr Lu. The remaining
42.86% of Puxing Energy is owned by R4 AFRE KB AR A
&](Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd.) (“Minsheng Life Insurance”)
Therefore, Puxing Energy, China Wanxiang, Mr. Lu and Minsheng
Life Insurance are deemed to be interested in these shares. The
remaining 10% of Amber International is owned by DUOU
Investment Co. Ltd., which is wholly owned by Mr. Chai Wei, a
director of the Company.

Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

These shares are held by BC Greater China Opportunities Fund
SPC, acting on behalf of and for account of BC New Energy Fund
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof) which is owned as to 100% by
BC Asset Management Limited.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any other persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at the date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 286
employees, excluding 6 temporary staffs (31 December
2014: 282, excluding 4 temporary staffs). The Group
determines employees’ remuneration according to
industry practices, financial performance and
employees’ performance. The Group also provides
other fringe benefits such as insurance, medical
benefits and mandatory provident fund contributions
with an aim to retain talents on all levels for further
contributions to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Thursday, 2
June 2016. A notice convening the annual general
meeting had been published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be
closed in the following periods during which no
transfers of shares of the Company will be registered:

0)

(it

from Tuesday, 31 May 2016 to Thursday, 2 June
2016 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the meeting of the Company. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4: 30 p.m. on Monday, 30 May 2016.

from Wednesday, 8 June 2016 to Friday, 10 June
2016 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates shall be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4: 30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 June 2016.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the public information available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
during the year and till the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the public float
requirement as set out in the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of all
the INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chai Wei
Chairman, Board of Directors

18 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize the
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company adopted sound governance and
disclosure practices and continued to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management
and reinforce the corporate governance structure.

The Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 save for
code provisions A.2.1 of the CG Code as detailed
below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 and up
to the date of this report, the composition of the
Board, by category of Directors, is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (Chairman and President)
Mr. LAl Chun Yu

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jun Yong (appointed on 25 September 2015)
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua (appointed on 25 September 2015)
Mr. PEl Shao Hua (resigned on 17 June 2015)

Mr. LI Jin Quan (resigned on 17 June 2015)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance of
core competence with regard to the business of the
Group so as to provide effective leadership and the
required expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management have extensive
management experience in the gas-fired power
generation industry. The biographical details and
experience of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 21 to 26 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of
the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and
on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by business needs.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, five Board
meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Nomination Committee meeting and one Remuneration
Committee meeting were convened. Details of
attendance of Board meetings of each of the members
of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual
Directors at Meetings” below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continuea)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each
Director at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby
the Directors can put forward their proposed items into
the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board
papers are then circulated to the Directors 3 days
before the Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions. For other Board
meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs. The Company
is of the view that all the INEDs meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of sufficient number of
INEDs, with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Chairman and President

Mr. Chai Wei, the President of the Company, has also
assumed the role of the Chairman of the Board, which
deviates from the code provision A.2.1 that the role of
the Chairman should be separate from that of the
President.

Mr. Chai has over 20 years of experience in corporate
development and management in a variety of sectors,
including energy and public media, and is the most
suitable candidate to serve in the positions of both the
Chairman of the Board and President of the Company.
For the time being, the Company is unable to identify
another suitable person who possesses abilities and
talent better than or equivalent to Mr. Chai to serve in
either of the positions. Given that there is a balanced
Board with five experienced NEDs (including three
INEDs) representing more than half of the Board, the
Board is of the view that there is a strong independent
element on the Board to exercise independent
judgment and provide sufficient check and balance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and President (Continued)

The Board will evaluate from time to time the
appropriateness of the dual roles of the Chairman and
the President performed by the same individual and
ensures that the arrangement will continue to be in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the NEDs and INEDs of
the Company is three years. Under the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of all Directors
(whether executive or non-executive) are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual
general meeting provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure
understanding of the business and operations of the
Group and directors’ responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

All Directors are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the
business and market changes to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
pbriefings and professional development for Directors will
be arranged by the Company as necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

ESCRBEEXERE®)

DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS (Continuea)

During the year under review, the Company has REBEFERN  ARAEEMERESZEME L
provided updates and coordinated training on the MBAAREHEERELRTERREITE
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to all BLEMBAAUREERE 2B - REBLFEE
Directors. Pursuant to the requirements of the CG ABFRAIMEX - FIEESRHARARARH
Code, all Directors should provide their training record BEMFIILE - BREESREMNTIEE
to the Company. According to the training records EENHERRLHENEIRENT

provided by the Directors, the trainings attended by
them during the reporting period is summarized as

follows:

Name of Directors

Corporate Governance, Regulatory Development
and Trainings on other relevant topics

EEEL ETERRHARMEEE

Exna

Executive Directors
HITEE

Mr. CHAI Wei (President and Chairman)
LERFE(BHEFEER)
Mr. LAl Chun Yu
RiRFRE
Non-executive Directors
FHPITEE

Mr. WEI Jun Yong
BAOBRAE

Mr. LIU Xuan Hua
BEERLE
Independent non-executive Directors
BUHAITESE

Mr. TSE Chi Man
WEX &

Mr. YAO Xian Guo
w75 B 5 A

Mr. YU Wayne W.

Al {2 & 5 4
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 June 2009 with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Yao Xian Guo
(Chairman) and Mr. Tse Chi Man and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Chai Wei.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of
attracting and retaining directors and senior
management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
the development of a set of fair and transparent
procedures in determining the remuneration policies for
the Directors and senior management of the Company
and for determining their remuneration packages. In
addition, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the determination of the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management of the Company.

Please refer to the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company for the principal
roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee.

No Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the Company’s remuneration policies, the
terms of the service contracts and the performance of
all executive Directors and senior management. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration of the NEDs and INEDs.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015
are within the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000.

44 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHAERAER AT

EEREREBAE ZH M
RZZFBZNFRNATNBRIFMWER
|EREHLE  BRRECEES - #
BREMABBLIFATEFHR LB
TEZE)RMEXELEE-ZHRITES

/7
|l

-4

A% HE B o i

ETRTDR
‘O 18>
g
Jﬂ'\*

ofF
HF

FrNZEe RS EFTSRERETAK
AEEXRBERDERAFTIBRERZES
EEREERE -FMZEETARERR £
HAARREERGAEEEHFMBR R EE
EHFHEBIRFERERF - N HZ
EgAEEEARANTEERSRERE
F) 357 B o

FNZEEeNIEAERBER2HNER
FARARBIREUETIR 2 N EE S RERE -

MEEF2HEBTEAFZFHN #HE_FT—
AE+-_A=+—BLFE FMEZESHT
—REH BHARAFHEE REELH
EAEFAERTESTHSREEENRR
AEE FTHEZESGCEEMEATESK
BREEBNFMGE YCHMIFNTES
MBI TESNFHAESTSREMHES -

BE-_Z—AF+t-A=1+—HILEE &
BB AB®H B EE N T Z 21,000,000
ﬁo



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established a Nomination Committee on 1
April 2012 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Nomination Committee comprises of all the INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Chai Wei (the
Chairman).

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to the diversity of members of the
Board since 2013. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange for the roles
and functions of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
Nomination Committee has performed all its obligations
under its terms of reference in 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

All new appointments to the Board are considered by
the Nomination Committee whose deliberations are
based on the following criteria:

o possession of core competencies, including but
not limited to financial literacy, that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and
complement the skills and competencies of the
existing Directors on the Board;

o ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties
and responsibilities effectively;

o possession of a good track record of experience
at a senior level in corporations/organizations;
and

the board diversity policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 18
June 2009 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs. Mr. Tse
Chi Man is the chairman of the committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for
communication between the Directors and the external
auditors as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
independent view and supervision of financial
reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the
Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and
financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
for the roles and functions of the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continuea)

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The
committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2015, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and statutory compliance. In addition to
reviewing the Group’s internal control system, the
committee also reviewed the independence of the
external auditors and approved the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT ERESHESRRENR

MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the Board should meet TEERTRET EFTSVATHETS
regularly for at least 4 times a year at approximately & EVEFERTIR NBE—R - @RE
quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual EHEESTE FTMEES BREZEEEK
Directors at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration REZEEERURBRERENBERARTE
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination 7 -

Committee and the General Meeting, respectively, is set
forth in the table below:

Meetings attended/Meetings held in 2015
—E-IFCHEER BETES

Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee meeting
EEga EEgE FWEEE BEREEE REZEEET REKXE
Mr. CHAI Wei 5/5 11 N/A 1/1 11
REXLE 58 B
Mr. LAl Chun Yu 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
BiRF LA i A TERA TERA
Mr. WEI Jun Yong (appointed on 25 September 2015) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRABEE(R_ZE—AFNA-THBEZEME) 38 A i@ A 38 A ~EA  TEA
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua (appointed on 25 September 2015) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BsELERTE—RAFNAZTHEAEEZT) TiERA i A TiERA TERA i A
Mr. PEl Shao Hua (resigned on 17 June 2015) 4/4 N/A 1 N/A 1/1
ELELEE(WV_ZSZ—RAFNA+LAHEDT) N iE A i A
Mr. LI Jin Quan (resigned on 17 June 2015) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
FEREE(R-Z—RENA+LAED T i& A i@ A 98 A
Mr. TSE Chi Man 5/5 11 2/2 1/1 11
75 XA
Mr. YAO Xian Guo 5/5 11 2/2 11 1
k5 Bl 5
Mr. YU Wayne W. 5/5 N/A 2/2 1/1 11
B fZ & 5 & 58 A
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were
responsible for providing services in connection with
the review of the Group’s financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2015 and the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total
remuneration in respect of review and audit services
provided by KPMG for the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,100,000 and there was nil for
non-audit services.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
(which endorsed the view) that, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG, be re-appointed as the
external auditors of the Company for 2016.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and
information to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the matters put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner within the time frame laid
down in the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets.

The Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The Board is satisfied
that, based on the information supplied, coupled with
its assistance of the Audit Committee, the present
internal controls and risk management processes are
satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed the
corporate governance functions and practices of the
Company, the compliance of the Model Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely
disclosure of the Group’s information will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding
on the Group’s business performance and strategies. It
is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing
investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company maintains a website at
“www.amberenergy.com.hk” as a communication
platform with shareholders and investors, where the
Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may also write directly
to the Company’s Investor Relationship at Room
706, 7th Floor, Albion Plaza, 2-6 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to
“hupo@amberinternational.com.cn” for any inquiries.
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

General meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders. The 2014
annual general meeting of the Company was held on 9
June 2015, the notice of which was sent to
shareholders no less than 20 clear business days
before the meeting.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE
COMPANY

During the vyear under review, there was no
amendment made to the Articles of Association of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at “www.hkexnews.hk” and
“www.amberenergy.com.hk” after the relevant general
meetings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —Z - AFEHE 51

ERRzBBERREEBR®)

AR &) & A 8k [lwww.amberenergy.com.hk]
ERERRRBEEBEB TS AJH#HA
BPATBRAEERAEEXEBER LEE -
MBEH DEXELERERAEMER - K
EREEENBEMNER - Nl BB
BEBNERLDBEMNEREZB2-6REEEE
ANETEIBEARAREEZBEXERE
lhupo@amberinternational.com.cnl « KA &) &

BARAHENTARERBEN -

BRRAERHEEFTSHRRZENSBHRE -
EFgNERASERE RABEBYEH
FRRARE  BERREMER - "RAIZZ
Z-MEEERRBAFARER_F-—RF AN
BT AEBREESRARE AT D R20ME %
BLEEHAXRRRKR -

AABEBERAA

REEEENRN  NABAGZRMBL KIE
ST °

Az SR A2 A

ERRER R RER| < —IHRE M - NAF]
RBEAFEHBEREERENES)RNRRAE
REBURBE UEBRRZEEREE -
ERBRRRGREZABRKBIRE LM A
MEEFRAERR - RERAZERBE NI
% B8 K & 18 £ B 22 P 48 3k [www.hkexnews.hk]
K 7K &) 48 [www.amberenergy.com.hk] 2

fﬁﬁo




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\%%5@&&

1k E./l:l?ﬁﬁ%

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continuea)

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by
the Board on written requisition of shareholder(s)
individually or jointly holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company pursuant to Article
58 of the Articles of Association of the Company. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transactions of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Article for convening an
extraordinary general meeting.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or
requests in respect of their rights as mentioned above
to the Company’s Company Secretary or via email as
set out in the above section headed “Communications
with shareholders and investor relations”.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman
liability)

Islands with limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 56
to 164, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN S

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M A% B ¥R &

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE—_T—AFE+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014

ke Lok R T OF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE T IBNEED

Revenwe ] e N csocot IENETRCCE
Operating expenses WEMX
Fuel consumption BRRLDE (189,658) (734,767)
Depreciation and amortisation Pr & & # E (26,059) (57,520)
Impairment losses BEEBE 5(Gii) - (139,943)
Repairs and maintenance HEERRE (1,978) (2,174)
Personnel costs BT KA 5(ii) (28,336) (20,106)
Administrative expenses THRAX (24,911) (26,044)
Sales related taxes HEMRBETIE (2,340) (6,147)
Other operating expenses Hi &Mz (6,185) (3,250)
Profit/(loss) from operations mEBA (BB 110,164 (94,612)
Finance income B 7 U A 2,173 3,350
Finance expenses B X (57,911) (58,619)
Net finance costs B 7% X 2N 5 5R 5(i) (55,738)
Other net income = ONEE 6 7,394
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrBiRIRA(B518) 5 61,820 (147,636)
Income tax Fris i 7 (18,441) (1,389)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERitgFl(EE) 43,379 (149,025)
Attributable to: LT&FE:

Equity shareholders of the Company RN B HE 7 R R 43,691 (148,897)

Non-controlling interests FE1%E R AE = (312) (128)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEP(EE) 43,379 (149,025)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREMN (i)

Basic (RMB) ERN(ARE) 11 0.103

Diluted (RMB) HEARK) 11 0.103

The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the
profit for the year are set out in note 23(d).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—RE+=A=1—HAILFE

2015 2014

b kR T O

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 ARB T BN S

Profit/(loss) for the year FEhiggd(BE) 43,379 (149,025)

Other comprehensive income for the E£ERE b 2 ® U A (B
year (after tax and reclassification BREHFSERAE

adjustments): &) : 10
ltems that may be reclassified HignsHoEEE
subsequently to profit or loss: =AIER -
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINHE AT
of financial statements of overseas PBHmERER
subsidiaries =% (13,176) 549
Total comprehensive income FRHE2EBNEE
for the year (148,476)
Attributable to: UT&FHRE:
Equity shareholders of the Company ZN/NEIR ) g (148,348)
Non-controlling interests R = (128)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBNEE
for the year (148,476)
The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these EO4E164E FTE M T RULFI B ®wE —

financial statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4R B AR R 3R

At 31 December 2015

RZFE—AFF+=HA=4+—H

2015 2014
b ok T O
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR Tt N R
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 12 1,170,829 1,176,030
Lease prepayments ENES 13 48,826 50,163
Deferred tax assets BEXERIBEE 7 (i) 5,725 4,532
Other non-current assets HiEmE&EE 15 18,083 —
1,243,463 1,230,725

Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 13,912 12,400
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 & H h 5K 1E 15 50,838 140,677
Pledged deposits [RE: VRN 16 5,000 45,000
Term deposits BT R - 20,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekHReEEY 17 150,012 148,499

219,762 366,576
Current liabilities g JR=R
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEBE 18 127,000 305,445
Convertible bonds Al ¥ E 5 19 97,923 -
Trade and other payables ENES Kk HEMKIE 20 96,157 252,505
Current taxation BN HA K 18 2,577 755

323,657 558,705
Net current liabilities RENAEEFHE (103,895) (192,129)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBRDER 1,139,568 1,038,596

The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these FOAZ164B FIE M AL ZEM B HRE —
financial statements. =i%e)
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At 31 December 2015
RZF—paF+-_HA=+—H

2015

—F-LF

Note RMB’000
QEEN ARBTT

Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 18 653,405
Convertible bonds AR E 5 19 -
Deferred revenue iE FE IR = 21 10,692
Long-term payables REIER RIB 22 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 7(iii) 5,708
669,805
NET ASSETS EEEE 469,763
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXRGEE
Share capital g A 23(b) 40,149
Reserves Gk 428,774
Total equity attributable to equity AAT#EZIRE
shareholders of the Company FE 1 48 HE 25 468,923
Non-controlling interests IR ES 840
TOTAL EQUITY R 469,763

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 18 March 2016.

Chai Wei
L&
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these
financial statements.

2014
—E—F

RMB’000
ARET T

527,500
85,857
10,920

4,908
3,224

632,409

406,187

36,582
368,453

405,035

1,162

406,187

REFEN _ZT-—ARF=ZA+/\BH#LE

KRR EEAT ©

Lai Chun Yu
RiRF
Director

EF

FOAT164E FTEH M E A S RE —

#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAERRDR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WFF-_A=1T—HIFE

Balance at 1 January 2014 R-g-mE
-A-BMEE 36,582 92,724 24,189 306,883 34,490 (2,683) 61,855 554,040 - 554,040
Changes in equity for 2014: “R-MERRED:
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = (148,897)  (148,897) (128)  (149,025)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EKA 10 = = = = = 549 = 549 - 549
Total comprehensive income 2ARALE = S = = - 549 (148,897)  (148,348) (128)  (148,476)

Establishment of a non-wholly owned Kz — 32 & B A7

subsidiary = = = = = = = = 1,280 1,280
Dividends to equity shareholders BERRBRE 23(d) = = = = = = (657) (657) - (657)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 23(c)(v) = = = = 886 - (886) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2014 R-¥-MmE+-A=+-H

B 8% 36,582 92,724 24,189 306,883 35,376 (2,134) (88,585) 405,035 1,162 406,187
The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these EO4E1GAEFTE T T RULF I K —
financial statements. B o
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Share
capital

23
Note  MGILH
g PN

Balance at 1 January 2015 WR=F-HEF-F-H

Sk 36,582
Changes in equity for 2015 —B—-AEHHERH
Profit for the year FREF
Other comprehensive income ~ E 2 EKA 10

Total comprehensive income FRAKALE

Issuance of new shares, BOHR EAR
net of issuance expense BITA% 23(b)(iv) 3,567
Appropriation to reserves BEGHE 23()(v) -
Balance at R-F-1%
31 December 2015 +-RA=+-H
3k 40,149

The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
E_E—AFEf A=+ —HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FATRERRER
Retained
Statutory earnings/
Share Capital Merger surplus  Translation  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses)

EERE RERH/
B AFHE SHEE E ERRE (RiGH)
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARRTR

92,724 24,189 306,883 35,376 (2,134) (88,585)

- 43,691
(13,176) -

(13,176)

29,806 =
- (5,484)

122,530 24,189 306,883 40,860 (15,310) (50,378)

D o

Subtotal

it
RMB000
ARETR

405,035

43,691
(13,176)

30,515

33,373

468,923

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity

2k
#a  98En
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARETR

406,187

43,379
(AC]

30,203

33,378

469,763

FOAEICAEFTE M R FHBIHRK —

“E-RFEHE 61



CONSOLIDATED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-—_F—AFL+-A=+—HIFE

2015 2014

et LR N T [0

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE \R% T IR

Cash flows from operating KB THFR/R S

activities mE
Profit/(loss) for the year FrmAl(EE) (149,025)
Adjustments for: KHEIER :

Depreciation of property, M - WEK

plant, and equipment RETE 5(iii) 24,722 56,183

Impairment losses BEEE 5(Gii) - 139,943

Amortisation of lease prepayments AT S # 5(iii) 1,337 1,337

Net finance costs B T5 B AR 558 5(i 55,738 55,269

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWE  BEREZE

property, plant and equipment BiE, (k&) F58E 5(iii) 4,561 (86)

Tax expense MIER X 7() 18,441 1,389
Changes in working capital LEESEF 148,178 105,010
Increase in inventories FEE (1,512) (8,014)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEU B 5 & H 5K 1E

other receivables (38 hn) 61,698 (2,345)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and e B 5 & Hh 5K

other payables (Rt 4,32 hn (151,365) 9,188
Cash generated from KLEFHAR

operating activities H& 56,999 103,839
Interest paid AR (53,978) (56,231)
Income tax paid ENFTEH (15,328) (7,852)
Net cash (used in)/generated from & & ;&5 (A, B

operating activities IREBHE (12,307) 39,756
The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these FOAF14BE FTH T AL ET B RE — I
financial statements. 7 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—_T—AFF+ A=+ —HIFE

2015 2014
—F—hF ol
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARET NG S

Cash flows from investing BETHRBEHERE

activities
Interest received B F B 3,097
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEWE - K E

and equipment PG IR O 479
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE - V%&

plant and equipment BENEN (28,750) (114,612)
Payment for term deposits YR EHER - (20,000)
Settlement of term deposits BNEBER 20,000 —
Net cash used in investing BRETHFARETEHE
cactivities e AUl (131,086)
Cash flows from financing METHHRBRRAERE

activities
Proceeds from shares issued, net of B2 175 P15 ;IE

issuance expense (MERFEITRX) 33,373 —
Proceeds from interest-bearing FFEREEARE

borrowings PE] 184,555 643,945
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFEEE

borrowings (PRYAIL)) (480,000)
Decrease in pledged deposits EE B TR 40,000 14,500
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 122 &) #E %5 A% B2 49

of the Company B 2 (181)
Capital injection by non-controlling FE1E IR AR SR )

shareholders to a new subsidiary LS NGIDES 1,280
Net cash generated from BEFEE®
__financing activites ______________BW&F& _________ BEREIEEER 179,544
Net increase in cash and HERBE£EEHEM

cash equivalents B 88,264
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BNBEER

at 1 January HEEEY 148,499 60,235
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—H=+—HBH

at 31 December RERBFEZEEYD 150,012 148,499
The notes on pages 64 to 164 form part of these FOL4E164E FTE M s Bt F o H K — 3P
financial statements. 5 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

1

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 July 2009 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of the Group are the development,
operation and management of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and related
Interpretations, issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A
summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

B4 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IR¥AGEIRBRAF
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The |ASB has issued certain new and
revised IFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(e) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The financial report has been prepared on
the basis that the Group will continue to
operate throughout the next twelve months
as a going concern. The Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB103,895,000 as at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014: RMB192,129,000).
Based on future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations and
the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain
continued bank loans and financial support
from an intermediate parent company,
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”), to finance its continuing operations
for the year ending 31 December 2016,
management believe that the Group has

adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future.

2

EX

(a)

(b)

SITEE @)

ERBHE)
BRgtEAZE@EEME TR
AREBEARNRARBATE BB ER
AT IR P BRI FT ] S IERT
BB B 75 3R &5 R RN o Y SE2(e) 1R
YR & R S5 S B S| B (R & T
HRBEER  MHAZFHEE L
= F 75 R P IR BR B0 N R (B 3R B %
BESFTHEEBEERR

MEBBRREREE

0 B 4 A B IS 4 5 B IR R A
EEE

FBEBRETIAAREEZR AR+ =
EREELEMEFBLEREER
Bk - RZE—RF+-_A=+
—B AEERHEERERHE
E S H A R#103,895,0007T (=&
—mE+-—_A=+—H AR
192,129,0007T) ° 1R & ¥ AN & B )&
FI R EFBETBIR &R AR A R TEA
AR AEB A FERSEITE
REREHRES AR EERERDA
AI((EEBRREESTESE N
BEHHEE TR E+-A=+
—HIEFENFELEER  WE
BERAAEBHARHERED
TERMERFELE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —E—AFERE

B85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the
functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries located in the PRC. All financial
information presented in RMB has been
rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated. The functional
currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD”).

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

656 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGEIRERAF
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Notes 7, 19 and 24 contain information

about

the assumptions and their risk factors

relating to deferred tax assets and liabilities,
convertible bonds and the fair value of
financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
pased on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is
exercised by the management when
assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or
decrease in the impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Property, plant and equipment (other
than major generator equipment) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated
residual value. Major generator
equipment which can be identified in
relation to specific production process
are depreciated by reference to the
annual power generation volume and
the installed production capacity of
these generator equipment.

2

EX

(d)

SR EE @)

fiE A flh 51 % FI B (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements
(Continued)
(ii) Depreciation (Continued)

(iii)

Management reviews annually the
installed production capacity of major
generator equipment, and the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property,
plant and equipment suffered any
impairment whenever an impairment
indication exists. In accordance with
note 2(n), an impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. It is
reasonably possible, based on existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial period that are different
from assumptions could require a
material adjustment to the carrying
amount of property, plant and
equipment.

B8 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IR¥AGEIRERAF
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

° Annual Improvement to IFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle

° Annual Improvement to IFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended
IFRSs are discussed below:

These two cycles of annual improvements
contain amendments to nine standards with
consequential amendments to other
standards. Among them, IAS 24, Related
party disclosures has been amended to
expand the definition of a “related party” to
include a management entity that provides
key management personnel services to the
reporting entity, and to require the
disclosure of the amounts incurred for
obtaining the key management personnel
services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact
on the Group’s related party disclosures as
the Group does not obtain key management
personnel services from management
entities.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated to the respective functional
currencies of Group companies at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Foreign
currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the
exchange rate as the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBARSFTEE#E)
(Continued)
(h) Foreign currency (Continued) (h) 5nE (&)
(i)  Foreign currency transactions (i) IEXZE)

(Continued)
However, foreign currency differences N MEATREEED
arising from the translation of the SNEEERR N A b 2 E Y AT
following items are recognised in other 7

comprehensive income:

— available-for-sale equity —  AHHERANEE (RE
investments (except on RN EREAMEZEIK
impairment, in which case foreign AFERBINE ZFHE
currency differences that have NEEER)

been recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss);

—  a financial liability designated as — WEARER EBERIE
a hedge of the net investment in INETEFIREZE AT
a foreign operation to the extent AENEmasE k

that the hedge is effective; and

—  qualifying cash flow hedges to the — WHEAER EEER
extent the hedges are effective. EmEHFIH-
(i) Foreign operations (i) BIIER

The assets and liabilities of foreign BINEBHEERBER(ERE
operations, including goodwill and fair KWEELENEERATE
value adjustments arising on FAE)IRBEAHNEXRHLE
acquisition, are translated into RMB at RBARE - BIMNEBHK X
exchange rates at the reporting date. ZRXGAMEERRERAR
The income and expenses of foreign e o

operations are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currency (Continued)

Foreign currency differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is
allocated to non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed
of in its entirety or partially such that
control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount
in the translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. If the Group disposes of part
of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the Group disposes of only part
of an associate or joint venture while
retaining significant influence or joint
control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss.

If the settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely
to occur in the foreseeable future, then
foreign currency differences arising
from such item form part of the net
investment in the foreign operation.
Accordingly, such differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments

(i)

76 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED %3

Non-derivative financial assets
and financial liabilities —
recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognises loans
and receivables issued on the date
when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised on the trade
date.

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it
neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the transferred
asset. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the
Group currently has a legal
enforceable right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a
net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Non-derivative financial assets —
measurement

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially measured at
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
— measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value less any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.
Income tax relating to transaction
costs of an equity transaction are
accounted for in accordance with
IAS12.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be
converted to equity share capital at the
option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted
for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability
component of the convertible bonds is
measured as the present value of the
future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do
not have a conversion option. Any
excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the liability
component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that
relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 = P 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

()

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If
the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

(j) Property, plant and equipment

()

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHEEXM#SE
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment () PE BERREE)
(Continued)
(iij) Depreciation (iii) T E

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line
basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives
unless it is reasonably certain that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term.

Major generator equipment which can
be identified in relation to specific
production process is depreciated by
reference to the installed production
capacity and the annual power
generation volume of these generator
equipment, since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the assets.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The estimated useful lives and installed
production capacity for the current and
comparative years of significant items
of property, plant and equipment are

as follows:
Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator 80,000
equipment 120,000
hours
Other machinery 5-32 years

Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years
fixtures, equipment and
others

The annual power generation volume
of the Group’s power plants is
governed by the relevant government
authorities and may vary from period
to period. Depreciation methods, useful
lives, installed production capacity and
residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the
cost of land use rights paid to PRC
government authorities. Lease prepayments
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment
that transfer to the Group substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. The leased
assets are measured initially at an amount
equal to the lower of their fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the assets are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

Assets held under other leases are
classified as operating leases and are not
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the first-in, first-out
principle, and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. In the
case of manufactured inventories and work
in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCurs.

Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, including
an interest in an equity-accounted
investee, are assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHEEXM#SE
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) BWIEE)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets () HTELHMEEE)
(Continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets
are impaired includes:

o default or delinquency by a
debtor;

o restructuring of an amount due to
the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider
otherwise;

o indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy;

o adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers;

o the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties; or

. observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in
expected cash flows from a
group of financial assets.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEXRIGHBERE)
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) BIE(E)
Financial assets measured at BREEREASTENEMEE

amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for these assets at both an
individual asset and a collective level.
All individually significant assets are
individually assessed for impairment.
Those found not to be impaired are
then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but
not yet individually identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by
grouping together assets with similar
risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical information on
the timing of recoveries and the
amount of losses incurred, and makes
an adjustment if current economic and
credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than suggested by historical
trends.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHEEXM#SE
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) BEGE)
(i)  Non-derivative financial assets (i) FHHTELHEEE)

(Continued)
Financial assets measured at REBHERLSAENEHEE
amortised cost (Continued) (&)
An impairment loss is calculated as the BREBEREERAERER
difference between an asset’s carrying JR B B A 285 3R 89 1 5T R 2K
amount and the present value of the ReEREFBEZEZRETHE -
estimated future cash flows discounted REZHRAEE ITREE
at the asset’s original effective interest R MAEERE K
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or B & ERA =BT - KM
loss and reflected in an allowance FEMNESE WREHEDN
account. When the Group considers SHRHEETREZTEES
that there are no realistic prospects of HEERREREENSG
recovery of the asset, the relevant EAE Bl 2R ERNBE
amounts are written off. If the amount BEGEREBEEED -

of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

(i) Non-financial assets (i) ¥2HEE

At each reporting date, the Group REREAE - AEBRTH
reviews the carrying amounts of its FemEE(TEREFERE
non-financial assets (other than EHIBEEE)WREE @ S
inventories and deferred tax assets) to ERBRFEEMBEDTR -
determine whether there is any NEEZETR - BIHEE
indication of impairment. If any such ENAKEcE BHERKS
indication exists, then the asset’s FETREAH -

recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
infows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill
arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an assets
or CGU is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with [AS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.

88 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIAGERERAF

2 EXEFEE@E

(n) mWiEE)

(ii)

(iii)

FE2HMEE(E)
BEMNREBBRETTED -
EMEEMS EEEE
REETEBRERLERER
BEEBEMEETEMNREE
(BRI E S # ) 7 A E
BEER

PRI R &R E

REFEBHAXIMERR
AlES EMARR - NEEAK
AR B R & 512 I 553455 A
MR ER T BRFE &N E
AR P HMBEHRE - RN
HEER  AEEARBIMEK
F 2 & B B AT A A R
BRI - ERREERE -



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BARETTHERGE)

(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) BIE(E)
Impairment losses recognised in an RAPHARMEE - AMEHERA
interim period in respect of goodwill, BHERIBEKAY RS ERE
available-for-sale equity securities and IRANFE S FTRE R R (B B 18
unquoted equity securities carried at "SR EZEARERDRD  BE
cost are not reversed in a subsequent ERZTPEBEANTBREE
period. This is the case even if no 4 8 B AT (4R E M I R
loss, or a smaller loss, would have BEEBBSERARDERE -
been recognised had the impairment IMAEEE o Bt - f8ar 4
been assessed only at the end of the HERAJZ SN TERER
financial year to which the interim THEEH R EHRE A EAt
period relates. Consequently, if the fair BRMEI GO0 - BURZIZ A E b
value of an available-for-sale equity ZHEHBRAMIEBRZANER -

security increases in the remainder of
the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

(0) Employee benefits o) EERHA

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual e FERIET - BEHER -
leave, contributions to defined EREHTRAKFTENER KL
contribution retirement plans and the IEEE RN MAENER -
cost of non-monetary benefits are AR EERHEBEERBHNSE
accrued in the year in which the WERER o W2 Tk B E RN
associated services are rendered by BELREMEFEE K
employees. Where payment or ZECHEKRAREYER -

settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined contribution retirement
plan

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, employees of
the Group participate in the social
insurance system established and
managed by government organisations.
The Group makes social insurance
contributions, including contributions to
basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and etc., as well as
contributions to housing fund, at the
applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government for the
benefit of its employees. The social
insurance and housing fund
contributions are recognised as part of
the cost of assets or charged to profit
or loss on an accrual basis.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies, as
determined based on the volume of electric
power transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective
electric power grid companies periodically.

Revenue from sales of electricity quotas is
recognised when electricity is generated and
transmitted by the buyer of the quotas.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on a
time-apportioned basis by reference to the
installed production capacity of individual
power plants and the relevant capacity tariff
rates.

2

(p)

(a)

SEBER#E)
BERIREFE)

fie N K P] B FE B 48 78 Al 23 sk K AT
SEHEteE  AZAAEERIA
BE RIFELBEMN= RO AN
B -BEEXREHFEEER—
BERZERAREMHEELELER)
MEEBERIABE  BRIELEBEN=
M HIRTREMEE B o

W 2

e Eﬁ% SRFREERERRE
BEARENEEDERELEE
B w%ﬁ% EBEAT R

:t:EE,:
272 o

HEREREENRANEERBRE
EERHXFER -

REBBWRATIESE @RI ERD
KEEELEETEEEERRIR
Py D B ERERR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 —E—AFERE

91



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

®

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grant
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred income at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as other income
on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset.

Lease payments

Payment made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss,
using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on
borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses and unwinding of the
discount on provisions. Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Finance income and finance costs
(Continued)

Foreign currency gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in
a net gain or net loss position.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected
tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Income Tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect
of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

o temporary differences on the
initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

o temporary differences related to
investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

o taxable temporary differences

arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.
Future taxable profits are determined
based on business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits
improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that
would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Income Tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

In determining the amount of current
and deferred tax, the Group takes into
account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes
and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events.
New information may become available
that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of
existing tax liabilities; such changes to
tax liabilities will impact tax expense in
the period that such as a
determination is made.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Related parties

() A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(@ has control or joint control over
the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

() is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(@)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (i); or

A person identified in ()@ has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHEEXM#SE
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued) (yy BAEHE)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any iy FEUTEMEHNERERR
of the following conditions applies: BASEEMNBEER: (&)
(Continued)

(n)  The entity, or any member of a (h ZERBIZEEBES
group of which it is a part, —EH o EEE TN EM
provides key management X B AR W% & B3 %
personnel services to the group SENARRHEIES
or to the group’s parent. BABERY o

Close members of the family of a person BANBEZREBEERNZA LR

are those family members who may be HEARR SRS EZAT

expected to influence, or be influenced by, IXHEENKREKE -

that person in their dealings with the entity.

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES 3 EEQAYHE
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and AEBETEARRERBBERTEAETE
disclosures require the determination of fair value, CREECHEERABENATE - &
for both financial and non-financial assets and FEEBBRBATHEBEEMETER
liabilities. Fair values have been determined for SEEAE  EERATERMEREZY
measurement and/or disclosure purposes based HWEHNTERABATEEERE@E
on the following methods. When applicable, EXBENEEMNE -

further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
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DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values
based on the borrowing rates currently
available for bank loans with similar terms
and maturity.
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8 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

(c)

Other non-derivative financial
liabilities

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are
measured at fair value, at initial recognition
and for disclosure purposes, at each annual
reporting date. Fair value is calculated based
on the present value of future principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date.
In respect of the liability component of
convertible bonds, the market rate of
interest is determined by reference to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion
option.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

102 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED I%3H

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue, and revenue
from sales of electricity quotas.

Volume tariff revenue represents the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents a subsidy
income from power grid companies,
following a reduction in the annual planned
power generation volume of the Group’s
power plants and changes in the electricity
tariff policies applicable to the Group from
2015, pursuant to a notice issued by the
Economic and Information Commission of
Zhejiang Province in December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WaERDEHREE)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (@) Wrzz(#&)
The amount of each significant category of RERNERNSEEWREEI®
revenue recognised during the year is as AT
follows:

2015
“F¥—-LF

RMB’000
AREFR

Volume tariff revenue BEEEERA 177,691 874,109
Capacity tariff revenue REFBWA 211,940 —
Alternative generation* BREE — 20,230
389,631 894,339
* The alternative generation arrangement allows a & BREESTHEA T RS
coal-fired power plant to purchase the power BEASEREHNBREHEE ARER
generation quotas of the Group’s power plants and DAHN L ESERASEATELZE
sell such generation to power grid companies HEREE o

based on the buyer’s approved on-grid tariff.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

104 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3£

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management
have identified four operating segments,
which are the four power plants, namely:

. Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”); and

o Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”).

The most senior executive management are
of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue of
the Group and should be aggregated to a
single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment.

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors,
accruals and bills payable attributable to
sales activities of the power segment,
convertible bonds, and bank borrowings
managed directly by the power segment,
with the exception of corporate liabilities.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmKkDIHRSE &)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) HEBEHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable () ZBHHEWa  Eat &
segment revenue, profit or loss, EREBEEHK

assets and liabilities

2015 2014

mt LRl —TOF

Revenue RMB’000 RMB’000
W 5 AR Tt N R
Reportable segment revenue 2Ry I U = 389,631 894,339
Consolidated revenue HREe K= 389,631 894,339
2015 2014

¥ A F ik

Profit/(loss) RMB’000 RMB’000
wmH(E51E) ARE Tt N S

Reportable segment profit/(loss) £ ¥k % &8 % 7

/(&) 74,431 (140,369)
Unallocated corporate expenses &% it 1> % 5 2 (12,611) (7,267)

Consolidated profit/(loss) before  #r & & i Al & 7
taxation /(E18) 61,820 (147,636)
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WzmkoiBmeE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEP®E(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable () E#FEDEBYm - 15 &
segment revenue, profit or loss, EREEHK (&)

assets and liabilities (Continued)

2015 2014

it Jok RN TP

Assets RMB’000 RMB’000
=13 ARE Tt N S
Reportable segment assets EROIMEE 1,426,626 1,596,518
Other corporate assets EMEEE 36,599 783
Consolidated total assets EBAERE 1,463,225 1,597,301
2015 2014

bk T [OF

Liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
=L IN-L-E b ARXETT
Reportable segment liabilities EWmHEEE 969,450 1,173,414
Corporate liabilities TEEE 24,012 17,700

Consolidated total liabilities EBEERE 993,462 1,191,114
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5 BREANER (FBE)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after Br & AE A (B8) Ty kR (GEA) A
charging/(crediting): TIERER:
() Net finance costs (i) BMBREXFE

2015 2014
bl T U4
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L B ARB T

Interest income F B U A (1,737) (3,097)
Net foreign exchange gain HNE Y 75 5 58 (436) (253)

Financial income B 7% A (2,173) (3,350)

Interest on interest-bearing borrowings st BEE K Eh R 1T

and other bank advances BT B 48,975 68,804
Interest on convertible bonds Al ERESF A 8,837 7,758
Total interest expense on financial EHREENE

liabilities X 48 58 57,812 76,562
Less: interest expense capitalised into Bl : EEREEE KR ERN

assets under construction* 7 F B R S 18,184
Total interest expense recognised in RIEEBROFEMAX

profit or loss @ 58,378
Bank charges RITEH 241
Financial expenses B 7 B St 58,619
Net finance costs B 75 AR AN 5 RE 55,269
o The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate * RET—NF  BARERNEBERK AN

of 6% to 9.72% per annum in 2014. FFIREB6%ET72% °
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B 75 e 2= B o

5]

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

(i)

Personnel costs

BREBLATER (BB (4#)

EIRAE
2014
—ET-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T N R

Wages, salaries and other benefits

e TERHEMETR 26,591 18,831

Contribution to defined contribution plan & &8t # 51 2 &9t 3¢ 1,745 1,275

28,336 20,106

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits all
the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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AEBE2EBERBTEENERNK
T o REEBEASRE  ~AKE
BEFEHK - ARERZLRBS
BEXMEBEAEHK  MELR
WER BEERASHEBNERR
BIE o B LR - REEY &
AR BB IR N E R KR 48 TS 5K
B -

AR BRI R B M DIE 2 A 8 R
- BEARBERBEERANZEE
BRI EBREFBHELTRSRIK
wAEEI((RETE) - f5KZ
BEEAFEADLEL AR
BB RAINKERR
B - BIESFTEINEEMBIULE
BESRE BAKEEED R
B AKENEERRNIEABRE
TREINEHRFBES -



5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

5 BRBLANGER (BB

(iii) Other items (iii) HIEH
2015 2014
k. LoE N T OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-Eb A ARETT
Operating lease charges KEHS 981 1,324
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&RE
plant and equipment BB ()58 4,561 (86)
Amortisation b 1,337 1,337
Depreciation e 24,722 56,183
Impairment losses (note 12(iv)) 18 & 18 (P 5E12(v)) - 139,943
Auditor’s remuneration % ERD B
— audit services — ZER 1,280
6 OTHER NET INCOME 6 HiWAFHE
2015 2014
b Bk T [0
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt N S
Government grants B 478 B 7,394 2,245

AEEHE_ZT—RAF+_A=+—8H
FTFEEBEKRHTEBRFHERARE
7,394,000 (=— & — g F£: A R &
2,245,0007T) ° It % BUAT 6 AL & 2 ¥
SEHEMECEEREMAORA -

The Group was awarded unconditional
government grants amounting to RMB7,394,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB2,245,000). These government grants were
mainly given as recognition of the Group’s
contribution to the development of the local
economy.
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7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

() Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents:

REBERANAER

() ZHEEBRAWBIIERE:

Current tax B #A % 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EFTISH
Under-provision in respect of prior years LATE & E B E TR
Deferred tax BEHIE
Origination and reversal of TREENEAL
temporary differences K # [
Total income tax expense REBmE
in the consolidated statement FriS M
of profit or loss R

(@ Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made for the subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong as these
subsidiaries did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014 Nil).

(c) The provision for PRC income tax is
based on the respective Corporate
Income Tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.
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2015 2014
—EF A F meaufea
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt N =
3,252

47

(1,910)

1,389

RIEFASFHENRA LR -
AEBBAEGNETAFSE
SREH -

BE_T-AFt+-_A=1—
AIEFE - AREENHBA
A EBHRBTANEHD
ERBGEH - BRI BBZE
B B8 B 5T 12 & B 15 B 5
HE—EF-|)-

o B P 15 75 R A A R BB
BRRZSEERNERAN®E
B R (AR 5 B AR RA T 15 71
RAREREE)E -



INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

According to the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (“New Tax Law”) which took
effect on 1 January 2008, the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
the unified tax rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC, a 5% withholding tax
is levied on foreign investors in respect
of dividend distributions arising from
profits of a foreign investment
enterprise in the PRC earned after 1
January 2008, provided that the
Company is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity
interest of a foreign investment
enterprise in the PRC under the tax
arrangement between the PRC and
Hong Kong Special Administration
Region. Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB5,708,000 have been recognised
for the retained profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015 to the extent that these earnings
would be distributed in the foreseeable
future (2014: RMB3,224,000).

(d) The Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulated tax
losses of RMB1,375,000 (2014:
RMB10,692,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be
available against which the Group can
utilise the benefit therefrom.

N

RABEH (&)

GEEERAMBIEE: (&)

(%)

RE-_ZZTN\F-HA—BELE
MH) R EEA R B b %
BEOE(FHBX]) > AREF
B Bt /B8 2 B B0 A A R AR —
725% °

BEFRBECEMEHRE @
RElBEXBEAIRES
AR B AN b 2 AR #E25% 3k DA
F RBREPREFBERFT
BREMNHEBELHE  IhERE
EARINELER=_ZTEN
F—H—B A% FTBEE R F E
AR IR B 9 R 12 T 5% 55 4R
FENH B AEEPBHHK
BRAREHZEZE-_Z—RF+_-A
=+ —B#BRITRERD KD
REBEFNERECHBEER
AR#E5 708,000 (ZZ—M
& A R#3,224,0007T) °

R TNARABEA K2R FE R
mAAEAEESHAEPH
Fles AEBWER R
TE 518 A R #1,375,0007T (=
Z— 04 : A R%10,692,000
TOERELEHRBEE -
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7  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBREXAMEFEN @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense (i) HEAREAFENHIEMTHE
and accounting profit/(loss) at Bt F(B518) ¥ AR -

applicable tax rate:
2015 2014
e kR T 0§
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BUNCE:E W

Profit/(loss) before taxation BrRELATE R (B 18) 61,820 (147,636)
Notional tax on profit before taxation, KAz Z2&HEFHE -
calculated at the rates applicable to % B8 B X 2 % # i@

profits in the countries concerned A EFE (34,570)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIH X 2
TS 2 425
Tax effect of unused tax losses and AR BIELEFHIBEEE
impairment losses not recognised as )k & T H &5 18 &
deferred tax assets BEBENRETEE 35,487
Tax effect of accumulated tax losses of © & 32 A ik iE 7 18 & &
Blue Sky Power Plant recognised as  HJ& X E | 2 u+ TRE]
deferred tax assets EBEORBEE (1,284) -
Tax effect of utilised tax losses of Blue KR BEFEERERSIE
Sky Power Plant not recognised as ERIBEENEXRE
deferred tax assets in prior years BREF B EEEN
MBTE (1,286) —
Under provision in prior years WEFERETRE 1,049 47
Withholding tax on profits retained by & B [} & 2 &) £ &3 )i 7
PRC subsidiaries EoREEib) 2,484 —
Actual tax expense EBREHBERAEZ 18,441 1,389
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREEBBERAMNAMEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(iii) Recognised deferred tax assets and (i) EERELEHESERERE
liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are EEFRBEERBENT:

attributable to the following:

Assets Liability
BE B

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—AF mESEl —F — RS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx INGE: Sl A RE Tt NS5

Property, plant and Y- BB &

equipment B
Withholding tax on REEH
profits retained by the i /& 2 A
Group’s PRC R & & ) &Y
subsidiaries TR (5,708)

Accumulated tax losses & X & 5 &Y
for Blue Sky Power B RIEEE
Plant

Government grants I T 76 BE

Deferred tax assets/ BEERBEE
(iabilities) (8E) (5,708)
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBBRRAMAEBHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(iv) Movement in deferred tax balance (ivy FREEHRIEEGEE

during the year

Withholding
tax on profits
Accumulated retained by
tax losses Property, the Group’s
for Blue Sky plant and PRC Government
Power Plant equipment subsidiaries grants
AEEH
EXERHET HE -HE MEASIRE
BEBR RitE BAMEOHR 2 BEER @it

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRE ARMTR ARBTRT ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RE—F—8 1,802 (3,224) 2,730 1,308
Recognised in consolidated income statement K& A KA K2 (34) (2,484) (57) (1,291)
At 31 December 2015 R=ZE—-R%F

= =F=F 1,768 (5,708)
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Chai Wei KBRS

Mr. Lai Chun Yu BRFAE

Non-executive directors FQTES

Mr. Wei Jun Yong RYBEE(R-Z—1F
(appointed on 25 September 2015) NA-+RBEZMT)

Mr. Liu Xuan Hua AEEXENZZ-1EF
(appointed on 25 September 2015) NAZ+HBEZR)

Mr. Pei Shaohua ELERE(RN-_ZT—1F
(resigned on 17 June 2015) NATEREE)

Mr. Li Jinquan FERAER-ZT—1F
(resigned on 17 June 2015) NATEEEE)

Independent non-executive directors BUHTES

Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXEE

Mr. Yu Wayne W. AREEEE

Mr. Yao Xianguo Bl kA

8

Directors’
fee

Exfe
RMB'000
ARBTR

EEMe
1B 1% & B N A& B 55383(1) ik B A |] (I
EEEMDZERROE2BHEENES
B & a0

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F-AE+-A=+-HLEE

Salaries,

allowances Retirement

and benefits Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

e ZHR BIRETE
BEWHE BEEL 23 @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TRT ARETR ARETR
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(H)

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Chai Wei EERE = 451 = 39 490
Mr. Lai Chun Yu BRETRE - 538 = 14 552
Non-executive directors FHTESR

Mr. Pei Shaohua EOELE - in - - -
Mr. Li Jinquan FTEREE - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors BIEHRTES

Mr. Tse Chi Man HENRE 142 = = = 142
Mr. Yu Wayne W. MEELE 142 = = = 142
Mr. Yao Xianguo HrBEE 142 = = = 142

426 989 L 53 1,468
There were no amounts paid during the year to FR - AEEBMEREEHERERN
directors in connection with their retirement from BASERNREM N TESEMRKIA -
employment with the Group, or inducement to NEIVEENEXREREZETMAME
join. There was no arrangement during the year R HE o

under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration.

m——— = === === swsss——————————— —SS—————
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, two (2014: two) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2014: three) individuals are as follows:

REHAL

AEBAZRSHFALFH ME(ZF—
ME MB)RES REOMESRER
i - Efp =R (=T —HEFE:=R)A
THBSAEMT

2015 2014

it Pk RN TP

RMB’000 RMB’000

IN-L B A ARETT

Wages, salaries and other benefits T8  HFekHEAMERN 820 654
Contributions to defined contribution plan & %8 { % 51 1 fit & 114 116
934 770

Number of individuals AT A 3

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the
band of Nil to HKD1,000,000 (2014: Nil to
HKD1,000,000).

There were no amounts paid during the year to
the five highest paid employees in connection
with their retirement from employment with the
Group, or inducement to join.

it AEEB € N FZ=1,000,000% 7T
(ZZ=—/M 4 : T%1,000,000/% 7T) °

FA - -AEEMERLESERFERERE
BB 3 1 73 D BE AN &= [ ) 22 B 7 () L ST A
EAAIFRIE -
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Hfth 2 WA
Hit 2EWASERBIBIBH R E

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effect relating to each component of
other comprehensive income

10

2015 2014

—®-Ef —E-NF

Tax Tax
Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount

BIA(FX),/ BREREX),/
REmSE BE KiEsE BCYNIES BE KiikeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRE ARBTRET ARBTR

Exchange differences on

BEE NI B R E B

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

translation of financial BERMERZ

statements of overseas

subsidiaries (13,176) 549 = 549
Other comprehensive income Hih2EEA (13,176) 549 — 549
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11 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit/(loss)
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB43,691,000 (2014:
loss of RMB148,897,000) and the weighted
average of 424,436,712 ordinary shares
(2014: 415,000,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of
ordinary shares

11 SREARBERA (EE)

(a)

BREXBHN (BE)
BREARF (BB RFREAQ
AT RERS RS, ()
AR #43,691,0007T (ZZT — Q4 :
B 18 A R #148,897,0007T) & & 3
17838 IR a9 hn ke 5 81424,436,712
f% (=Z — PO 4F : 415,000,000/%) 5t
=R/ N

(i) B RRAII0HEF ¥ &

2015 2014
—T—AF il
Number of Number of

shares shares
% &1 % £&

Issued ordinary shares at R—A—HE#TH
1 January (note 23(b)(i) 3@ A% (M 5E23(0)(0)  EERERLLIGGE 415,000,000

Weighted average number of new B 17 ¥ #) hn &

shares issued (note 23(b)(iv)) 15 8 (BT 5E23(0)(v)) 9,436,712 -

Weighted average number of RTZA=+—HA&BER

ordinary shares at 31 December  HJ hN#E ¥ 15 &

ceLEly AP 415,000,000
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11  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share for the year ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014 does not
assume the conversion of convertible bonds
because the conversion of convertible bonds
would be anti-dilutive. Diluted earnings/(loss)
per share was the same as basic earnings/
(loss) per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 as
no dilutive potential shares were outstanding
during the year.
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11 SREARBERR (HE)E

(b)

BREEEAN (BHE)
MRERIERESBEEREE
FE BRI EEHE—_ZT—AFT
—B=t—RBE=-ZE—MNFE+=A4
=t HUIEFESKREERT (B
B)RTEBSRIEHESDES
BemREE_ZE—RF+-_A=
+—BRER-_E—NE+-_A=+—
ALt FE W EBEITEINNBEES
B MERNSREERTN, (B
BESKREXRAERN (EIB)IE
ﬁ °



12  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 % BENKE

Motor

vehicles,

furniture,

Major fixtures,

Buildings  generator Other equipment and  Assets under

and plants  equipment  machinery others  construction Total

RE R

¥ TE KE #F
kEE  BERE  HHs REf EBEE @5
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTL ARMTR ARETRE AR%TR AR%TR ARETRL

Cost %S
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ-NE-—A—-AHE&H 104,442 773,118 174,360 15,758 525,361 1,593,039
Additions AE 103 o 1,333 1,519 122,060 125,015
Transfer from assets under construction EEBEEEE 158,449 469,963 1,812 24 (630,248) -
Disposals HE = = = (1,235) = (1,238)
Balance at 31 December 2014 W_E—NF+-A=+—-BH&EH 262,994 1,243,081 177,505 16,066 17173 1,716,819
Additions NE 7,963 3,514 93 380 12,132 24,082
Transfer from assets under construction EEBEREE 858 105 2,596 = (3,559) =
Disposals HE = (6,752) (442) (224) - (7.418)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIE-RFEF-A=+—-BNEH 271,815 1,239,948 179,752 16,222 25,746 1,733,483
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMER

impairment losses REBE
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-T-mE—A—AHES Q7464 (224692) (83,203) (10,146) = (345,505)
Charge for the year ERNER (8,067) (34,924) (11,787) (1,405) = (56,183)
Impairment losses AEESE (19976)  (106,359) (12,856) (752) = (139,043)
Written back on disposals HERE - - - 842 - 842
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-B-NE+-A=+-BH&EH (55,507) (365,975) (107,846) (11,461) = (540,789)
Charge for the year FRER (7,770) (7,074) (8,633) (1,245) = (24,722)
Written back on disposals HERE - 2,362 282 213 - 2,857
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-ZB-RE+-A=+-BHEs (63277)  (370,687) (116,197) (12,493) = (562,654)
Carrying amounts MRE{E
Balance at 31 December 2015 WZE-RFT-A=t—-RM&H 208,538 869,261 63,555 3,729 25,746 1,170,829
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+-A=+-BHEH 207,487 877,106 69,659 4,605 17,173 1,176,030
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

0)

(it

(i)

All of the property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, certain property,
plant and equipment with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB176,505,000 were pledged
as collateral for bank loans (2014:
RMB181,180,000) (see note 18(i)).

The refund of VAT on purchases of
depreciable assets has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the relevant assets.
The amount is transferred to income in the
form of reduced depreciation charge over
the useful lives of the relevant assets. This
policy has resulted in a reduction of
depreciation charge by RMB393,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB2,250,000). As at 31 December 2015, a
balance of RMB38,216,000 remains to be
depreciated (2014: RMB38,609,000).
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12 YE- -BERKREE)

0)

(it

(i)

AEEBEBNYE - BENREES
IR e

R_E—RF+-_A=+—H 4
BRTEE & A R¥176,505,0007T (—
T —JO4F : A R#181,180,0007T) HY
ETYUE BERRBARITER
AR (R K 5E18()) ©

BEUWEEEMEEREKRER
HEEENREEIR - 2S8R
EREENAERFTFHANTES
BRI EREWA - IEE
SEHE-_ZT—HRF+_-_A=+—H
LtEFEZIEERARLARE
393,000 (=T — MM F: A R#
2,250,0007T) * MW= E—RF+=
B=Z+—H NMEEBHARE
38,216,000 (ZE— M F : AR
38,609,0007T) FHT & -



12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(iv)

According to a notice issued by the
Economic & Information Commission of
Zhejiang Province in December 2014, there
are certain changes in respect of (i) the
electricity tariff policies applicable to the
Group; and (i) the annual planned power
generation volume of the Group’s power
plants from 2015. As a result, the Group
identified an indicator of impairment for the
related property, plant and equipment and
performed an impairment assessment of the
related assets based on their estimated
recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amounts are estimated using the present
value of future cash flows based on the
financial forecasts approved by management
and a post-tax discount rate of 10%. The
future cash flows are forecasted with
reference to the estimated production
capacity, annual planned power generation
volume, expected tariff rate and gross
margin and estimated years of operation.
The forecasted revenue and gross margin
are determined by past business
performance and management’s expectation
for market development. Based on the
results of this impairment assessment, the
Group made an impairment loss for power
plants amounting to RMB139,943,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, based on the
impairment assessment performed in 2014,
the Group reassessed the major factors that
may affect the assessment, including the
applicable tariff policies and rates, the
annual planned power generation volume
according to the latest notices issued by the
relevant regulatory authorities, expected
gross margin, estimated years of operation
and the relevant discount rate. Based on the
Group’s current assessment, no additional or
reversal of impairment loss was considered
necessary.

12 W% BERKE®E

(iv)

BEATIEEEMEELLZEESR
“TE-ME+-ABENBE A
TEEEAETES: ((EBARAE
EMNEERE: RAEE T —
AFEREHMNEFAEERETE - ¥
RNEBGREBAYE  BMERZRER
BREEEERERBEEND
AT Bl € B TR E G o ATk
B4 %8 515 15 & 18 & #t & &) 1 7%
TEOR R R R 1 HT IR 10% - FRA K
RIBEeREMBEMMGEE - KKIR
CRENKCLXERHGTER - 2F
TERES  EHEEREFNERMNU
N FE AT & & & 5 TR o FERI UK
mREFEDIRBEEBRARE
EESMSEEENHEMET - R
BIREFENER BHE_T—
NFE+-_A=+—HLEFE &x&E
EEEmELRERBEAREK
139,943,0007T °

RN-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H8" &
BT —NFRTEITA R E T
AEBEEMN A E%T 1A
MNEEREX - 2EEANEERE
NMEX  BIBEHABEEITFIZEDLN
RMBEAIYMNEFEEBE
2 BHEMNER  BIHLEEFHAR
HEAFTIRE - BIBEASBERFAT
& AR INGEEE D
BEEE o
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13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 BEfFNHEE
Cost 5%
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZT—MF—A—BWNE# 59,020
Additions NE -
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-—NE+_A=+—HH&E# 59,020
Additions NE =
Bl ¢8O ool e . L T S Rl .00
Accumulated amortisation Retiss
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZE—MOF—HA—BM#sH (7,520)
Charge for the year FANEA (1,337)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZZE—WME+ZA=+—HHNE& (8,857)
Charge for the year FAER (1,337)
B L R e . N O G il 10194,
Carrying amounts RmE{E
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-ZFB-AF+-_A=+—HNEHR 48,826
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-—NE+_A=+—HH&E# 50,163
()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land () BEANESERDRERAI0ES0F

use rights in respect of land located in the Y FR B b Y {5 AR AR AR o

PRC with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted.

(i)  As at 31 December 2015, certain land use (i) RZZTE—RAF+=—A=+—H" 'K
rights with aggregate carrying amount of E4E A ANKE10,337,0007T (==
RMB10,337,000 were pledged as collateral — PO : A R#10,792,00070) B &
for bank loans. (2014: RMB10,792,000) (see T+ AEDS ARITERIEER
note 18(i). (R B EE18())
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14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

14

REEBLRAINIKRE
TREHAIEZXEAKTHER

BE

HEEZMEATNFE - KAEEH
SN PRFRRX D 2B B R B

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Company
AASEIERET L
Place and date of Issued and
establishment/ fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation Direct Indirect registered capital activities
B3I AR 3T EBRTRHAR
AT & B 5 i 25 % B 2 Hi & 3 /M EE FTEER
Amber Bluesky (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Bluesky”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
FIMEXR(FEB)BRRQA &5 10,0018 7T/ BEER
(TRMEX] —EZNFRNAZ+AH 20,0007 7T
Amber Jingxing (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Jingxing”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
BRINRE(FB)BRAF &% 10,0017 7T,/ RE R
(M3 E]) —EENFXNA=1+HB 20,0007 7T
Amber Deneng (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Deneng”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
RHEE(BEB)ERAF S 10,0017 7T,/ REER
(M#kmEael) —EENFRAZ+XAE 20,0007 7T
Amber Anji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD1/HKD10,000 Investment
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 holding
FHEH(EB)BERAR BE 1T,/ REER
IHRm\eED —ZEZEN\FNAZH 10,0007 7T
Blue Sky Power Plant (i) The PRC - 100% USD17,171,400/ Power
15 December 2004 USD17,171,400 generation
EXRER [0) Al 17,171,400% 7t/ BE
—ETME+-ATHEHA 17,171,400 7T
Jing-Xing Power Plant (if) The PRC - 100% USD16,660,000/ Power
6 January 2005 USD16,660,000 generation
L E B (ii) R 16,660,000% 7T,/ EE
—TERF—-AKA 16,660,000 7T
De-Neng Power Plant (iff) The PRC - 100% USD18,408,710/ Power
18 August 2004 uSD18,408,710 generation
EEEEM (iif) ] 18,408,710 7T/ ®E
S A e AN=! 18,408,710 7T
Anji Power Plant (iff) The PRC — 100% USD46,011,933/ Power and heat
25 February 2011 USD51,700,000 generation
25 B (iii) FE 46,011,933% 7t/ BERER
—E-—%-A=-+THH 51,700,000 7T
Wenling Juneng Wind Power (iv) The PRC — 68% RMB4,000,000/ Under design
Generation Co., Ltd. 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 and development
(“Wenling Power Plant”) stage
BERERNBEEARAA (v & AR ¥4,000,0007T,/ MIERR
(CRE=E/) —mE+A=H A K #50,000,0007T R B B RS B
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RBEARMNER &)
(Continued)
Notes: Bt 3% -
(i) Blue Sky Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (i) EXEMARPBKIINPINEGERE B
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- ZENFLtAZTHAKARIINEBEDRE -

owned enterprise on 25 July 2008.

(ii) Jing-Xing Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (ii) FEEBARFREKIAFIINEERE RN
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- ZERNFNARBKRRINEBEDLE -

owned enterprise on 5 September 2006.

(iii) De-Neng Power Plant and Anji Power Plant were established (iii) BREERRLEERANPREKLNFINE
in the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint ventures. B

(iv) Wenling Power Plant was established in the PRC as a (iv) BEERANR-Z—NFLtA=ARFBEMNKL
domestic company on 3 July 2014. EOR AR NG|

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BWEZ K H At KA

2014
=t Tl T UF

GUUEIOE  RMB'000
ARETR NSTE

Trade receivables W E 5 kI8 20,801 70,126
Prepayments AN 5,004 8,345
VAT recoverable within one year —FARAENEE 22,927 56,821
Other receivables H A fE& U 5K I8 2,106 5,385

50,838 140,677
All of the trade and other receivables are FIBERKES REMRIBIERAIR —F
expected to be recovered within one year. Credit A E - ER QT ERIIOKREER - RN
term granted to power grid companies is 30 —E-RFE+TZA=t+—H BBA—F
days. VAT recoverable over one year of RMB B B K H0 38 (8 B A K %18,083,0007T 7
18,083,000 is presented as “other non-current [HMIEREEE DR -

assets” as at 31 December 2015.
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15

16

17

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2015, ageing analysis of trade
receivables of the Group based on the invoice
date is as follows:

15 EWESKREMRIEE)

N-ZE—FAF+-A=+—8 K&£EE
WESHIBREZHNIRE DT

2015
—F-hF
RMB’000

ARBFR

Within 1 month —@AR

20,801

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Pledged deposits can be analysed as follows:

16 BEBER
BEEREXRSTET:

2015
—F-LF
RMB’000
ARBFR

Guarantee deposits for issuance of BITRHEERBERRITEED
commercial bills and banking facilities R & 17 &

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All the balances of cash and cash equivalents at
the balance sheet date are cash at banks and on
hand.

17 BERAEEEY

REER AR MREFEVHER
RBOTERRTFERE -
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2014
—FE-mF
RMB’000
ARETIT

70,126

2014
—T-mF
RMB’000
ARETT

45,000
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18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FHEMEE
2015
—E-AF
RMB’000
ARETR
Current B &
Secured bank loans BEHEFRITER
Unsecured bank loans EEBRITER
Unsecured loans from a related party | IREE T B
(note 26) (M 5E26)

Current portion of non-current
secured bank loans

Current portion of non-current
unsecured bank loans

JERNER B R R ITE A
BV AR &8 >

JERNHR K SR 1T B A
BVER &8 75

Current portion of non-current FEBNER | & 5 FE IR A

unsecured bank loans guaranteed EEFIRITE XD

by a related party BN HR 28 5 64,500

127,000

Non-current FE BN #A
Secured bank loans BEHRBRITER 25,000
Unsecured bank loans ERBIRITER 32,500
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed MEgES 13"‘{% EI’J

by a related party EEBIRITER 343,000
Unsecured loans from a related party EAH R E Em

(note 26) (P 5% 26) 252,905

653,405

780,405

BERARD A

2014
o 4

RMB’000
ARBETTT

===

15,000
90,000

120,445

5,000

22,500

52,500

305,445

65,000
55,000

407,500

527,500

832,945



18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 :TEEE#E)

(Continued)

()  The secured bank loans as at 31 December () =ZEBE—AF+-A=+—HBH®WEIRK
2015 carried interest at rates ranging from HIRITERIRFEFIES.25% £6.55%
5.25% to 6.55% (2014: 6.15% to 6.55% per (ZF — M F: F A E615% £
annum) and were secured by the following 6.55%) 5t B WA T 5 & E 15K
assets: #

2015 2014
=t Sl —TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-E b ARETT

Carrying amounts of assets: SERTE:
Property, plant and equipment W% - HWE K& 176,505 181,180
Lease prepayments EANEE 10,337 10,792

(i)  Unsecured bank and other loans as at 31 (i) Z—ZE-—AF+_A=+—HNEE
December 2015 carried interest at rates FIRIT R H M B FUIRF F E3.92%
ranging from 3.92% to 6.55% (2014: 4.95% £6.55% (Z T — M &F: F H X
to 7.2% per annum). 4.95% E7.2%) T 8. °

(i) The Group’s non-current bank loans were (i) AEBEIERNEARITERME AN
repayable as follows: T:

2015 2014

b Il T OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

IN-L-Eb A ARETT

Within 1 year —F R 127,000 80,000
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BRE—FEMRFA 346,905 127,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HiBmEERFA 266,000 281,000
Over 5 years Wil RF 40,500 119,500

653,405 527,500

780,405 607,500
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19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 November 2011, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HKD124,800,000.
The subscriber of the Convertible Bonds is Amber
International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”), the immediate holding company of
the Company. The principal terms of the
Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) Optional conversion

The holder of the Convertible Bonds
(“Bondholder”) may convert the Convertible
Bonds in integral multiples of HKD3,900,000
into fully paid ordinary shares of the
Company with a par value of HKD0.10 each
at an initial conversion price (“Conversion
Price”) of HKD1.30 per share at any time
from 29 November 2011 (the “Issue Date”)
up to (and including) 28 November 2016 (the
“Maturity Date”). The Conversion Price is
subject to adjustments in the manner set out
in the Convertible Bonds agreement as a
result of dilutive events. The maximum
number of ordinary shares that may be
converted is limited to the extent that
following such conversion, the shares held
by public should not be less than 25% of
the then issued share capital of the
Company.

130 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHEERBR AR

19 TWEHRES

R-TE——F+—A-+hB  xAFEE
1T #87K 4 58 75124,800,00058 7T H A] # #4
BEHE(AUERES]) JERESFNR
BAARAREEZERAFFRABRKR
EERAT(RABER])  AJEiRES
MEESERIOT:

(a) TTEERE
AERESFREATESFEAD
AAR—FE——F+—A=-+ B (%
TREDEZZE—XF+—A=1+N
BIESENDEEZB) EBHET
IR - RS E(RARE]D
T R130% T B & B| B
3,900,000/ JT % £ 15 & 0] & (5
FEBSHERINANTEFRE
BOIOB THERAR - MRERE
A#EEM IR ERESHRERN
AL o AlEBRKAHTERE
B ERRAB @R B RARAFRMD
JERVRARRERBEITRAN
25% A BR o



19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(b)

Redemption

Unless previously converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company shall redeem the
Convertible Bonds at the principal amount
and pay all the outstanding interest on
Maturity Date.

As the functional currency of the Company
is HKD, the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds will be settled by exchange of a fixed
amount of cash in HKD with a fixed number
of the Company’s equity instruments. In
accordance with the requirements of IAS 39
Financial Instruments—Recognition and
Measurement, the Convertible Bonds
agreement needs to be separated into a
liability component consisting of the straight
debt element and redemption elements of
the bonds, and an equity component
representing the options of the Bondholder
to convert the bonds into equity. The
proceeds received from the issue of the
Convertible Bonds have been split as
follows:

(i) Liability component represents the fair
value of the contractually determined
stream of cash flows discounted at the
prevailing market interest rate
applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on
the same terms, but without the
conversion features.

The liability component was
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using an effective interest rate of
9.72%.

19 ATEBRESE)

(b)

HE =

RIFEZRE®EE - BESAFEHE A
NAARBHRRAE BER A&
Bigs  AE2HEINREEMNES -

HARARRINEER ST &
B ERELSESHETHE ZA
DR T ARBKIETESENS
THEEE - REBEBFEFERSE
VFELRMITAE-—HERARTEZR
o AERELsMERASRAES
DEREFNEEGERE DO LIE
ElED) RiEEID GEEHFIFTEA
AEFERAEREZIBIEZR)-
BOAERESMSREE S W
T

() BEBITAGHEERER
ENAFE FBARERE
WEE BN A X 1% A R 5
RERABERRASRE
BARAEBEESESTEAEMRE
R IRITH S A RBEIR o

BEMYERIZBHRANE
FRERFN . 72%5 & °
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19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(b) Redemption (Continued)

(i)  Equity component represents the
conversion options, which is
determined by deducting the fair value
of the liability component from the
proceeds of issue of the Convertible
Bonds as a whole.

The movement of the liability component and the
equity component of the Convertible Bonds for
the year is set out below:

19 TmJEHBESR(E)

(b) HEEI(4E)

(i) BWSEMOEBRBEEE R
BRTABRESNESMN
BREATMREBESINA
FEETE -

FR AERESORBESS RES
SEEBMT:

Liability Equity
component component Total
Bff#s #HEBD st
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT ARETT

As at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—WmE—H—H 79,794 26,065 105,859
Interest capitalised during the year £ A %78 & A K & 3,253 — 3,253
Interest expensed during the year 4 A3 - | & 4,505 = 4,505
Interest payable during the year & A& & B (1,969) — (1,969)
Foreign currency translation INEME ER
difference 274 = 274
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—WEF
+=-—B=+—H 85,857 26,065 111,922
Interest expensed during the year 4 A3 - | & 8,837 — 8,837
Interest payable during the year & A & & B (2,091) — (2,091)
Foreign currency translation INEME ERR
difference 5,320 — 5,320
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—HF
+=-—A=+—8H 97,923 26,065 123,988

132 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHEERER AR



19 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continuea) 19 AEBRES#E)

No conversion, redemption or purchase or HE-_T—AF+-_A=1+—H1  #&
cancellation of the Convertible Bonds has taken i EO BEFHETERES -

place up to 31 December 2015.

The Convertible Bonds was recognised as current AERESFEBRRR_ZE-—HF+=
liabilities as at 31 December 2015, with the A=+t—BmnrsaE JNHARE_-Z
maturity date due on 28 November 2016. —RNFE+—H=Zt+N\RB-

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ENEZRHEMIAKIE

2015 2014

b SN —TOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT PN S

Trade and bill payables ENESRERENER 29,475 179,693
Other payables and accrued expenses  Hfth fE < X IB & B =t 2
(see note 22) (R Ff5E22) 66,682 72,812
96,157 252,505
An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of AEEENESRIERENER 2RI
the Group is as follows: DT

2015 2014
Lokl T &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR PN S

Within 3 months =@ARN 28,394 11,154
Over 3 months but less than 6 months #3838 =1{& B8 /<@ A K 607 168,539
Over 6 months but less than 1 year BBANEAE—FA 474 —

29,475 179,693
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21 DEFERRED REVENUE 21

2015 2014
“E-IF ekl
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-Eb A ARKETT
Government grants I8 48 B 10,692 10,920
The Group was awarded a compensation Ji(\\:i;—:i TERBEREREESR
amounting to RMB11,435,000 from Anji Economic EepHKWELMERAERRERLS
Development Zone Administrative Committee for E R A A & B B (E A R #11,435,000
its acquisition of the land use right for I LI F R AELEWRZ - R+

construction of Anji Power Plant in 2012. The e FAAE L G AR 8 o

grant is first recognised as deferred revenue and
is amortised over the grant period of the land use
right.

22 LONG-TERM PAYABLES 22 RHEIEMNFKE

2015 2014

mt Pk RN TP
RMB’000 RMB’000
INCLE A A XE T T

Payable for purchase of property, plant BEW¥ - MERRED

and equipment FET 5RIE 4,908
The balance represents payable for the purchase %*ﬁ?%)iﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ O ERBEHE
of an imported generator equipment by Jing-Xing NRE - BEREEHBEARARK
Power Plant. The nominal value of the purchase 60,448,0007C ' ZHR10FRTE - % &
consideration of RMB60,448,000 is payable over BERAFMEBREESRE BB 2R
a period of 10 years. The amount has been FEFBEHAERBSRL)FE
measured at fair value being future cash outflows
discounted at the prevailing interest rates as at the
respective reporting dates.

Current portion of long-term payables of EHENRENABXISARK
RMB4,908,000 (2014: RMB6,222,000) has been 4,908,000c(= & — I F: A R #&
included in other payables and accrued expenses 6,222,0007T) B 5F A E b B~ 5K 1B & fE

(see note 20). 57 2 (R K$FE20) ©
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

The Company

23 BEXR - - REEKKRE
(a) EBBHZEH
REBGAERSBYEYEER
a2 WIRH W GRAREHEK -
AARERIERZBD FEYEERZ
BERENT

.|

Balance at 1 January 2014 R-F-ME—-A—-AH

e 36,582 85,714 358,044 26,065 (14,962) (7,064) 484,379
Changes in equity for 2014: ~ —F—FEHEHEE:
Loss for the year EREE = = = = (148,509)  (148,509)
Other comprehensive income HEm2mEBA = = = 2,869 = 2,869
Total comprehensive income FRNE2ERABE
for the year - - - 2,869 (148,509)  (145,640)
Dividends to equity shareholders 1 & i & it & 23(d) (657) - - - - (657)
Balance at 31 December 2014 MZ-F—MF+=h
=+—-BHER 36,582 85,057 358,044 26,065 (12,093) (155,573) 338,082
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EXR-#BRRE#E)
(Continued)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEBMRZ2EEHE)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) xuagl(#&)
Share Share Contributed Capital Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve loss equity
BE ROEE S AES ASHE  ERES 2GR @
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

i & ARBETT ARBTE ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTRT ARBTIT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZ-F—A&F—A—HH
=174 36,582 85,057 358,044 26,065 (12,093) (155,573) 338,082

Changes in equity for 2015: B — A FEMHREH:
Profit for the year F A% T (17,510)
Other comprehensive income — Efh 2 E R A =

Total comprehensive income FRNZHERALE
for the year (17,510)

Issuance of new shares, net of ~ Z{THMR - BMKRELT
issuance expense X 23(b) pL R 33,373

Balance at 31 December R-F-2%+=A
2015 E+—-BH%R 114,863 358,044 (6,011) (173,083) 360,027
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(b) Share capital

Note
B =
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of FREE010E T
HKDO0.10 each EOR=REN i)
Ordinary shares, issued B {TR$ B iE K :
and fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H
Shares issued BEITRH (iv)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8©

23 EXR - - RBEEKRE(#E)

(b) Bx&
2015 2014
—B-EfF —E—mEF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
BHBEE &8 B& 15 2 B koL
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR¥ETF T
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 88,050
415,000,000 36,582 415,000,000 36,582
43,600,000 3,567 - —
458,600,000 40,149 415,000,000 36,582
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

0)

138 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED I%3H

The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 September 2008
with an authorised share capital of
HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000
ordinary shares of par value HKDO.10
each. On 8 September 2008, one
share was allotted and issued to the
initial subscriber and was subsequently
transferred to Amber International on
the same date. On 20 March 2009,
two shares were allotted and issued to
Amber International to settle the
consideration for the transfer of Blue
Sky Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power
Plant to Amber Bluesky and Amber
Jingxing respectively. On 11 June
2009, one share was allotted and
issued to Amber International to settle
the consideration for the transfer of
De-Neng Power Plant to Amber
Deneng.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
then sole shareholder of the Company
on 18 June 2009, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased
from HKD380,000 divided into
3,800,000 ordinary shares to
HKD100,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

BERARD A

23 EX- - RFEERREE

(b)

B (&)

0)

“EENFNANB  AAF
EHESEHEFMKY EF
f% 7 %380,0007 7T 9 &
3,800,0000% & f% ® 201078
THERR - —EEN\FHA
N\H - BRREAER R
TG XRRBEZ
&%ﬁ@%%ﬁmﬁ%o_
EENFZA=FTH &2

ﬁﬁmlmm%&%ﬁﬁh

g) FW”ELIEE?E&
ﬁmam PIBBREXRE

MREBHHRE - ggn
FXA+T—8  ARERYEIHA
i%m%&%ﬁ—&%%-

NEEmIEINE S EEE

BHHRE -

RIBARGEFHOME—RERER
—EEAENAT\BRBEN
REBER ARREERAR
380,000/% 7T (5 43,800,000
% 3 37 A% ) 32 2100,000,0007%
7t (5 A1,000,000,000 4% & 3
%) °



23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

(i

(i)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
then sole shareholder of the Company
passed on 18 June 2009,
299,999,996 shares of HKDO.10 each
in the Company were issued at par
value on 9 July 2009 to the
Company’s existing shareholder as at
18 June 2009 by way of capitalisation
of HKD30,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB26,446,000) from the share
premium account.

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each were
issued at a price of HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The proceeds of
HKD10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,814,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD156,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,500,000), before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account.

On 31 July 2009, the sole underwriter
of the share offer exercised the over-
allocation option for the issuance of
15,000,000 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.10 each at HKD1.66 per share.
The proceeds of HKD1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,322,000)
representing the par value, were
credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of
HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000), before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account.

23

BEXR fERRE#E)

(b)

B & (&)

(i

(i)

BERRRERMHME KRR
RZZEENFNATN\HBEB
MEMAZR  ZBBRMG
Yt {8 BE F130,000,0005% 7t (17
N A R #26,446,0007T) #
BEARNAR RZZETHhE
+t AABRAARBIR=_ZEZTA
FRATN\BHRBRFIZREA
18 % 17299,999,996 % 5 i% I
BEO10E T AR AR °

—ETAFEATH RER
D3 E 1% 5 i%1.66/8 TH B
1% %% 77100,000,000 B% & %
B0 ITHE @ - HER
BRHDEEBEMNFRASRKE
10,000,000/ T (FHE R AR
#8,814,0007T) 5T A A2 &) HY
AR - R TARMBRZ D BT
M 2 1 BT 13 5% 78156,000,000
B o & RN AR &
137,500,0007T) 5T A B9 & (B
;@E °

—“TTNFLA=+—8 K&
MBEENBREBHEPITER
EERCARAE - 1R ETAR1.66/8 T
B#%3£7715,000,000 % E A% =
BB THERR - HER
BihmESNAMSBS RHE
1,500,000 7t (FHE A AR
1,322,0007T) 5T A AR &) #) AR
Ao BRTRARIMBR AR B 1TH
S HIFT 8 I8 23,400,000 7T
(FB& A R #20,629,0007T)
SFARGD RERR ©
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

(iv)

On 14 October 2015, 40,000,000
ordinary shares and 3,600,000
ordinary shares of HKD 0.10 each were
issued at a price of HKD 0.97 per
share to the third parties pursuant to
the subscription agreement and the
placing agreement signed with the
Company. The proceeds of HKD
4,360,000 (equivalent to RMB
3,567,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share
capital.

(c) Reserves

(i)

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
then sole shareholder of the Company
passed on 18 June 2009,
299,999,996 shares of HKD0.10 each
in the Company were issued at par
value on 9 July 2009 to the
Company’s existing shareholder as at
18 June 2009 by way of capitalisation
of HKD30,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB26,446,000) from the share
premium account.

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each in the
Company were issued at HKD1.66 per
share under the share offer. The
excess of the proceeds totaling
HKD156,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,500,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary
shares issued, before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

An additional 15,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the
Company were issued at HKD1.66 per
share on 31 July 2009 pursuant to the
over-allocation option. The excess of
the proceeds totaling HKD23,400,000
(equivalent to RMB20,629,000) over the
nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued, before the
share issue expenses, were credited to
the share premium account of the
Company.

On 14 October 2015, 40,000,000
ordinary shares and 3,600,000
ordinary shares of HKD 0.10 each were
issued at a price of HKD 0.97 per
share to the third parties pursuant to
the subscription agreement and the
placing agreement signed with the
Company. The excess of the proceeds
totaling HKD37,932,000 (equivalent to
RMB31,035,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary
shares issued, before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BEXR - RBEERE(

(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) fE#Ew(2)
(i) Capital reserve (i) BEXfFE

BEXARBEREATAER:

Capital reserve comprises the
following:

the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the companies comprising the
Group as at 1 January 2009,
after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries;

the difference between the total
amount of consideration paid and
the total carrying value of non-
controlling interests acquired, for
acquisition of 47% equity interest
in De-Neng Power Plant by the
Group in 2009;

capital contribution by Amber
International of a dividend
receivable from De-Neng Power
Plant in 2009; and

the amount allocated to the
unexercised equity component of
Convertible Bonds issued by the
Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for Convertible
Bonds in note 2(i)(v).
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

Merger reserve represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing and
Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets of
Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing and
Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and
the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

)

(vi)

Statutory surplus reserve
(Continued)

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years' losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in
proportion to the existing equity
interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2015 was RMB114,863,000
(2014: RMB85,057,000).
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EXR-#ERERE#E)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends d ER
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FRAEMLXLIGEZBZRE
shareholders of the Company ®’E

attributable to the year

2015
—F—-IF

RMB’000
AREFT

Final dividend proposed after the ¥4 H Hi 1% ## Kk 7 23
reporting date of HKD0.03 per % B & 1%0.03% T

share (2014: nil) (ZE—EF: &)
The final dividend proposed after the WERHE Z2BIRARHARE
reporting date has not been WEERARRNGEEHNE
recognised as a liability at the & o

reporting date.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) RERHEFEMEKLT
shareholders of the Company HERREF—BBFEFER
attributable to the previous y=|
financial year approved during
the year

2015
=t B

RMB’000
ARBTR

No final dividend in respect of the I R E R AER F—
previous financial year, approved  BFEF[E KBRS B
during the year (2014: HKD0.002 (=—Z— 4 : HK
per share) 0.0027% 7T)
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

. credit risk
. liquidity risk
° market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from
customers.

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation and
Huzhou Electric Power Bureau are the
customers of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

146 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHEERBR AR

24 £FTHE

Bt 75 B i B
L it
AEBEHEKXEERTANNATRER

e FEERAR
s RBEZRAR
s WHER

M 2 5 A £ B A E B i & IR R R
ZEH AEEGERERARZEE
BREEF  WERARKREZERNERE -

(a) EEREMK
EERRESRIACEFRRS
HHRBITAHELMSAE B
THHBREsRAR  TERAAE
EREKEFRE -

=B E R

AEEMEERREZRARBEE
ShEMFIEA - EREDHFTEE
BE UHEEREZSEERAR -

HIENRARHAMNENRR/ESE
EEaE—_ZT-—hF+-_A=+—H
LFENEP o

EERBRALRE B IEAN KA
EEREENREERR -



24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk for power plants in the PRC
power industry is concentrated on a limited
number of power grid companies. However,
management, having considered the strong
financial background and good credit
worthiness of the power grid companies,
believe there is no significant credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other trade receivables are
set out in note 15.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with any lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24 E&mIAEE)
Financial risk management (Continued) MR ERE)
Overview (Continued) #EE (E)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RHBELERE)
The following are the contractual maturities UTReEABENSHIN BN
of financial liabilities, including estimated BIEME AN AN - B &R
interest payments and excluding the impact HRZEO R E

of netting agreements:

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE—_E—AF+-A=+—HIEEE

Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount cash flow demand one year
RIFHHR S —ER
AR (& REEE HREKE Ba—%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETRT AR®TR AR®TR

Interest-bearing borrowings T &5 & 780,405 883,580 156,416 727,164
Trade and other payables & & 5 & H b 7k 18 96,157 96,157 96,157 -
Convertible Bonds Al ¥ % 5 97,923 106,472 106,472 -

974,485 1,086,209 359,045 727,164

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—NE+=-A=+—HIEEE

Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than

amount cash flow demand one year
RIFHBEE — R

iR (B REREE DINEXRE BB

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR ARBTFR ARBTR ARETR

Interest-bearing borrowings &t & (& & 832,945 971,776 346,460 625,316
Trade and other payables &S & 5 &k H b 518 252,505 252,505 252,505 =
Long-term payables i B e 308 4,908 6,284 — 6,284
Convertible Bonds Al (& 5 85,857 102,229 1,969 100,260

1,176,215 1,332,794 600,934 731,860
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

Market rate risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in
market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

(i) Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions
are the rates of exchange quoted by
the People’s Bank of China that are
determined largely by supply and
demand. Changes in exchange rate
affect the RMB value of sales
proceeds of products that are
denominated in foreign currencies.
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24 &I EE)

Financial risk management (Continued) MBRERERE)

Overview (Continued) Lk (2)

(c) Market rate risk (Continued) (c) THBFIEREKEE)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEREEE)

Exposure to currency risk B g
The following table details the Group’s TRANEAEBRHKELH
exposure at the reporting date to AR AR FEIRE E ¥ 5T
currency risk arising from recognised BENEEREENXBEME
assets or liabilities denominated in a EREER R o

currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they

relate.
2015 2014
“T A F i
uUsSD’000 UsSD’000
FER FET
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - 11
Trade and other payables BRNES Kk KM KIE (539) (396)
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE (19,700) (19,700)
(20,239) (20,085)
The following RMB/USD average UMTEFRNEANARKER
exchange rates applied during the ETLFHEE:
year:
2014
— e
usD ET 6.1190
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the RMB
against the following currency at 31
December would have increased profit
before tax by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2014.

24 ERWIE#E)
Bt P b B (E)

(c) WimREEREE)

()

Effect on profit before tax
UsD

0 B AT 2 P B
%5t

A 5 percent weakening of the RMB
against the above currency at 31
December would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above
currency to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.

B (E)
RTZA=1+—8 AREX
Tt ¥ T E5% & 5 bR B AT
AR N5 e RN - &
T3 R AR P B H b 5 81 (4 )
EMB)GFIE - DKM
My E A B — T — P F AT IR A
E—H-

2015 2014

=t Tl T NF
GUUEROE  RMB'000
ARETT WSS SE
6,145

BRT AR+=A=1+—H
ARBL L E¥% 2 E5%E
mEBES LR ERESL
SHEEMERNTE -
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market rate risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, interest-bearing borrowings
and Convertible Bonds are the Group’s
major types of financial instruments
subject to interest rate risk. Cash and
cash equivalents are with fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.1% per
annum for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: 0.01% to 2.6%
per annum). Pledged deposits are
placed to satisfy conditions for
issuance of commercial bills and bank
facilities granted to the Group, with
fixed interest rates of 1.8% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: 0.29% to 3.25% per annum).

Profile

At the reporting date, the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
financial instruments was as follows:

24 &I EE)
MBEGEERE)

#E it (&)

(c)

1% F = E bE (2

(i)

Fixed rate borrowings
Variable rate borrowings

4 Al

ClIH

i
o of

M

\
I
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Fl % & p#
AEETFEMNERRN SR
TEATZHABERe MR
SEEY  BEBEER - FE
BERITERES HEZ
T-RF+_A=+—HIF
E BReRkREZEEYHE
EF RN F0.01% £11%
(ZE—F : FHE0.01%E
26%) c HE_E—HE+=
A=+—RHLtFE  BEERF
HRERBAREZBRRTR
REBEFTERITEENIEYE
Mk #HE-_ZT—AF+-A
=+ —HALEFEMNEEFFE
B1.8% (Z T — P04 : FF =X
50.29% £3.25%) °

#x

RBERD  AEBWFES
BT EA MR T

2015 2014

ot PXR- N T 04
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt BN Sws
127,905 216,302
652,500 702,500
780,405 918,802



24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

Market rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

As at 31 December 2015, it is
estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after tax
for the year and consolidated equity by
approximately RMB4,190,000 (2014:
RMB4,616,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the reporting
date and had been applied to re-
measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk at the
reporting date. The impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and

consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2014.

24
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews
and manages its capital structure to
maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholders’ return that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as Convertible Bonds and long-term
payables, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt. The Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to
equity shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets
to reduce debt.
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24 E@MIA#E)

Financial risk management (Continued) MR ERE)

Overview (Continued) #E ik (E)

(d) Capital management (Continued) (d BEEHEE)
The gearing ratio as at 31 December is as RT-_A=+t—HNABBEARL X
follows: (N

2015 2014

ke Lk R T OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
N E A ARETT

Gearing ratio BEEBEALE 60.83% 65.68%
(e) Fair value (e) AF{HE

The carrying amounts of significant financial RIE—AFUR-_FT—NF+=

assets and liabilities approximate their A=+t—H BEAcBMEEN AR

respective fair values as at 31 December MEmMEEESEAFEESE -

2015 and 2014.

25 COMMITMENTS 25 FEIE
() Capital commitments outstanding at (i) RIEREETLERN  EEREGS
the year end but not provided for in MERRBERESHEERK
the consolidated financial statements B FBnT:

were as follows:

2015 2014

ke Lk T O4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN S

Authorised but not contracted for B EBRETH 7,100 32,230
Contracted for EEEY 26,002 11,887

33,102 44117
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25 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 25 TRIEE)
(ii) Non-cancellable operating lease (i) EFMFATHHEEEHERS
rentals were payable as follows: mE:

2015 2014

b Ll T OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
N Rl ARETT

Less than 1 year DR —F 916 756
Over 1 year but less than 5 years BB —FEHAFNRN 1,070 1,120
1,986 1,876
26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BERIRS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, (BT —RAF+A=+—HIEFE -
transactions with the following parties are BETRINATZRGBRR/BETRS ° A
considered as related party transactions. The TRAEEETIEEINFANEE

following is a summary of the principal related BEIRHIBE -

party transactions carried out by the Group with
the below related parties for the year.

Name of party Relationship

FESETE A 1%

Amber International Immediate holding company of the Company
3% 30 B R ARG EZEZERAR]

Wanxiang Holding Ultimate controlling company of the Company
& [ E R ZN/NS = OB F 2oy /N

Puxing Energy Intermediate parent company of the Company
= ERe RRARWEEE QT

Wanxiang Finance Fellow subsidiary

& [A) B1 7% A % Bff /8 A 7]
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

26 BAERRZF(#E)

HERESETHEXMES XS
R4 85
AEEEFRBETRBE-T—
BE+-AS+—HIEFEMEA
RHEBMT

(@) Significant related party transactions (a)
and balances with related parties

Particulars of significant transactions
between the Group and the above related
parties during the year ended 31 December
2015 is as follows:

2015 2014
Lok T 0
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt BN S
Loans from KEBUTHESHER
Wanxiang Finance &\ B 7% 117,500 355,445
Puxing Energy T2 B 252,905 =
Loans repaid to EBEEERFUTHAES
Wanxiang Finance B Mm% 237,945 245,000
Unsecured bank loans LA A 38 75 12 4R 1Y SR 4K 39
guaranteed by, net of RITER » SHRERE
release upon repayments BR BR B9 12 (R
Wanxiang Holding BRER (52,500) 121,000
Interests paid to FFUTHEFHHE
Wanxiang Finance Bm% 6,697 4,877
Interest accrued FEstF 2
Puxing Energy T8 Bk 2,817 =
Issuance of commercial bills BUTHEREDNZ
accepted by BTHERRE
Wanxiang Finance BB 200,000
Settlement of commercial bills LI TFREHEMZ
that accepted by EREEER
Wanxiang Finance & [\ B 7% 130,000 200,000
Deposits with EUTHERER
Wanxiang Finance &\ B 7% 17,500 50,000
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BEERRZ (&)
(Continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) HEAEFETHEXMAESRS
and balances with related parties RE56R (&)
(Continued)

2015 2014
ik — T [UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT BN B

Withdrawal of deposits with EUTHRESRRER

Wanxiang Finance B[R % 32,500 49,000
Interest on discounting FFUTHESIZEHES

commercial bills paid to BHBREMNE
Wanxiang Finance & ) Bt 7% 12,680
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Significant related party transactions
and balances with related parties
(Continued)

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties as at 31 December
2015 are as follows:

26 [FEE

(a)

AR5 (4#)

HRAESETHEXRESRARS
R (E)

R-ZB—FE+-_A=+—H &K
SEHEFRBEANEARSAE
RSB ANT

2015 2014
b Lok T [OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-E A ARKTT

Amber International ¥k 30 B R
— Convertible bonds — ATERES 97,923 85,857
— Dividend payable — ERARE 11,326 11,326
— Interest payable — ERFE 6,273 3,938
115,522 101,121

Wanxiang Finance B
— Deposits — & 5,000 20,000
— Bills payable — ENEE (20,000) (80,000)
— Interest-bearing borrowings — STREE - (120,445)
(15,000) (180,445)

Puxing Energy TR B
— Interest-bearing borrowings — STREE 252,905 —
— Interest payable — EBRFE 2,817 —

255,722
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BEERRZ (&)
(Continued)
(b) Key management personnel b) EEEBASME

remuneration

2015
“F-A%F

RMB’000
ARBFR

Short-term employee benefits SEEE =R 2,405
Post-employment benefits B 55 12 43 T 168

2,573
Total remuneration is included in “staff B @B ATE TARAIR W
costs” (see note 5(ii)). 5(ii)) °
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27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27 AT\ B @B % AR OR &R
FINANCIAL POSITION

<y RTS8 31 December
2015 2014
—F-4fF —T—F
+=A=+-8 pECERRs

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T
Non-current assets ERFEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN EPNGILE O F 580,367 571,027
Current assets REEE
Other receivables within one  E fth — 45 (A &Y & Uk FX 18
year 70
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 644
714
Current liabilities mENEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE - 120,445
Convertible bonds Al E R E A 97,923 —
Trade and other payables EBNES K EAMKIE 31,002 27,357
128,925 147,802
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (92,435) (147,088)
Total assets less current HEERRHDER
liabilities 487,932 423,939
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Interest-bearing borrowings FTREE 127,905 —
Convertible bonds A] 82 i (E A - 85,857
NET ASSETS AEFE 360,027 338,082
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRGEE 23(a)
Share capital [N 23(b) 40,149 36,582
Reserves it 319,878 301,500
TOTAL EQUITY “iER 360,027 338,082
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28

24

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 18 March 2016. Further details
are disclosed in note 23(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

As at 31 December 2015, the directors of the
Company consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling parties of the Company to be Amber
International and Wanxiang Holding, respectively,
which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and the PRC respectively. These entities do not
produce financial statements available for public
use.
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4]

REMRIFFAESE

RBEBHEZ BEEEZR_T—F
ZATNBRAEREERE  £—FFB
M EE23(d) I E

EERBAERS
ARREFRA W-F-AF+-A=

T—H ARFNERREERERSTD
Bl 7% 3% 30 B R I B 1 2 i (0 Tl S 2 R
RS MBI EMKIL) - %FRRA
EREANDRERNPERE -



30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the |IASB has issued a few
amendments and new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

30

BE—F-HAFT-A=+—HL
FECHEMERRERNER ~ #
AEAREENARESE

HEZSYERRTIELE  AEe:
AR ZEEEEHMEBE_E—AF+=
A=T—BLFEHRERBREZS
MR R ARER 2 ZIEER LFE]
R A EASEEBEERETIE
I8 :

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

BUTBHSZERHE

B9 & 5 2 R A& 3

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016
R R T MEFE BRI RS E R —ET-RF—-H—H
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of 1 January 2016

depreoiation and amortisation

T\ = u+/§/ﬁlj 165}?&. 2N quEE'J%SS?L%E’Jf/ uT

BRITERBHENT —T—RF—H—H

?EET
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets 1 January 2016
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
%W%ﬁ%ﬁ% E105% M BB & 52 A 285 M8 5] « 1% & & B H B —ET-RF—-H—H
NAIKEERRAZEMNEELERTE
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Investment entities: Applying 1 January 2016

the consolidation exception

B B B 745 ¥ 5 22 R 2105 [?%Eﬂ%#&%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ%mﬂ&l S

SEHER]  REER  BRAKSMIME

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BIFR & ERE1RAER] - WERTE

HER|FE8  —E—RNFE—H—H

1 January 2016
—E-RF—H—H
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 30 E-E-—HRE+-A=+—HIL
NEW STANDARDS AND FECEMEERERWIERT - #F
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT FTEARZRENIESEE)

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
B PR B 7S 5 2R FE155% - B AW E ZZET-NF—HA—H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2014) 1 January 2018
B RS EREIR eRITA(ZT—UF) —FT—-N\&—H—H
IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BIPR B IS 5 2R 2165 - HE —ZT-NF—HA—H
The Group is in the process of making an AEEFEFEHFEITRBAEERE
assessment of what the impact of these REHENEE BEEAAL  A&%H
amendments is expected to be in the period of RERM EAZETIRAIGE S EEEEE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the BREBEATE -

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

o= == —=—=—a=——- = === =0 e
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